H“H”””Hl””|||“|”..ilIERNST&YOUNG

ETIGA INSURANCE BERHAD
(9557 1)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors' Report and Audited Financial
Statements
31 December 2012



9557 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CONTENTS

Directors' report

Statement by directors -

Statutory declaration

Independent auditors' report
Statement of financial position
Income statement

Statement of comprehensive income
~ Statement of changes in equity
Statement of cash flows

MNotes to the financial statements

13

13

14-15

18

17

18

19

20-21

22 -158



9657 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the underwriting of life insurance, investment-linked and
all classes of general insurance business.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the
financial year.

RESULTS
RM"000
Net profit for the financial year 347,103

There were no material fransfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than as disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial
year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature.

DIVIDENDS

The amount of dividends paid by the Company since 31 December 2011 was as follows:

RM'000
In respect of financial year ended 31 December 2012:
Interim dividend of 307 sen per share, net of 28% tax on
152,151,399 ordinary shares, declared on 28 December 2012 350,329

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the current
financial year,

MAYBANK GROUP EMPLOYEES' SHARE SCHEME ("ESS")

The Maybank Group Employees’ Share Scheme ("ESS”) is governed by the by-laws approved by
the parent's i.e. Malayan Banking Berhad's ("MBB"} shareholders at an Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 13 June 2011. The ESS has been implemented on 23 June 2011 and is in force
for a maximum period of seven (7) years from the effective date for eligible employees and
executive directors within Maybank Group.

The maximum number of ordinary shares of RM1 each in Maybank available under the ESS
should not exceed 10% of the total number of issued and paid-up capital of Maybank at any point
of time during the duration ¢f the schame. '
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DIRECTORS

The direciors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this
report are:

Date' Mohd Salleh Hj Harun (Chairman)
Dato' Johan Ariffin

Zainal Abidin Jamal

Hans J. J. De Cuyper

Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid

Datuk R. Karunakaran

Loh Lee Soon

Frank J.G Van Kempen (appointed on 17 July 2012)
Gary Lee Crist (appointed on 31 July 2012}
Damis Jacobus Ziengs (resigned on 19 April 2012)

Pursuant to Article 98 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Y. Bhg. Datuk R. Karunakaran
and Mr. Loh Lee Soon shall retire at the forth coming Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Asscciation, Mr. Gary Lee Crist and Mr.
Frank J.G. Van Kempen shall retire at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors ("the Board™) is committed in ensuring that the highest standards of
corporate governance are practised in the Company. This is a fundamental part in discharging
their responsibilities to protect and enhance all stakeholders’ values and the financial
performance of the Company.

{a) Board responsibilities

In discharging their duties, the Board is equally responsible to ensure compliance with the
Insurance Act ("the Act”) and Regulations, 1996 and Bank Negara Malaysia's ("BNM")
Guidelines, including BNM/RH/GL/003-1: Minimum Standards for Prudential Management of
Insurers (Consolidated) and other directives. They also have to comply with the tenets of
corporate governance by adopting its best practices as stipulated under BNM/RH/GL/003-2:
Prudential Framework of Corporate Governance for Insurers. Apart from their statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Company's major investments, disposals and
funding decisions. They ensure the implementation of appropriate systems to manage risks
and also review and approve the strategies and financial objectives to be implemented by
the management. These functions are carried out by the Board directly and/or through their
various committees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT'D)

(a} Board responsibilities (cont'd)

(b)

The Board is responsible for creating the framework and policies within which the Company
should be operating and the management is responsible for implementing them. This
demarcation reinfarces the supervisory role of the Board.

Hence, the Company has an organisational structure showing all reporting lines as well as
clearly documented job descriptions for all management and executive employees and
formal performance appraisals are done annually.

The directors, with different backgrounds and experiences, collectively bring with them =
wide range of skilis and specialised knowledge that are required for the management of the
Company.

The Beard met 7 times during the year and the attendance of the directors was as follows:

Number of
Board
meetings
attended %

Dato' Mohd Salleh Hj Harun {Chairman) 6/7 86
Hans .J. J. De Cuyper 77 100
Dato' Johan Ariffin 77 100
Zainal Abidin Jamal 6/7 86
Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid 717 100
Datuk R. Karunakaran 77 100
Loh Lee Soon 6i7 86
Frank J.G Van Kempen {(Appointed on 17 July 2012) 3/3 100
Gary Lee Crist (Appeinted on 31 July 2012) 212 100
Damis Jacobus Ziengs (Resigned on 19 April 2012) 414 100

Management accountability

Whilst the Board is responsible for creating the framework and policies within which the
Company should be operating, the management is accountable for the execution of the
enabling palicies and attainment of the Company’s corporate objectives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT'D)

(¢}

(d)

Corporate independence
All material related party fransactions have been disclosed in Note 36.
Internal controls and audit

The Board exercises overall responsibility for the Company's interna!l confrols and its
effectiveness. The Board recognises that risks cannot be eliminated completaly; as such,
the systems and pracesses put in place are aimed at minimising and managing them. The
Company has established internal controls which cover all levels of personnel and business
processes that ensure the Company's operations are run in an effective and efficient
manner as well as to safeguard the assets of the Company and stakeholders’ inferests.
Continuous assessment of the effectiveness and adequacy of internal controls, which
includes an independent examination of controls by the internal audit function, ensures that
corrective action, where necessary, is taken in a timely manner,

The internal audit reports are tabled at the first scheduled Audit Committee ("AC") meeting
after the date of receipt of these reports. The internal audit function reports to the Board
through the AC, ‘and' its findings .and recommendations are communicated to senior
management and all levels of staff concemed. The AC is established at the holding
company's level.

The composition of the joint AC established at MAHB and the attendance of the directors
are as follows;

Number
of AC

meetings

attended %
Loh Lee Soon (Chairman) B8/6 100
Independent Non-Executive Director
Datuk Dr. Syed Othman Syed Hussin Athabshi 6/6 100
Independent Non-Executive Director
Gary Lee Crist (Appointed on 26 July 2012) 212 100
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Damis Jacobus Ziengs (Resigned on 11 Juns 2012) 3/3 100

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

The AC met 6 times during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT'D)
{e) Risk Management

The Board takes responsibility in establishing the Risk Management Committee ("RMC").
The primary objective of the RMC is to oversee the senior management’s activities in
managing the key risk areas of the Company and to ensure that the risk management
process is in place and function effectively.

The Company established the RMC at the holding company’s level. In discharging its
responsibilities, the RMC is complemented by the Investment Committee ("IC") of the Board
and assisted by the Asset Liahility Committee ("ALCO") of the management.

The risk management framework of the Company comprises three main components i.e.
policy-making, monitoring and control and risk acceptance while the risk management
approach would premise on three lines of defence i.e. risk-taking, risk control and
coordinating units and internal audit. Risks have been classified into three main categories,
which are made up of insurance risk, financial risk (incliding market risk, credit risk and
balance shest risk) and operational risk.

There is an an-going process in identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
faced by the Company. This is achieved through designated management funclions and
internal controls, which includes the setting up of operational risk limits for all core activities.

The composition of the joint RMC established at MAHB is as follows:

Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid (Chairman)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk R, Karunakaran
Independent Non-Executive Director

Gary Lee Crist (Appointed on 11 June 2012)
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Damis Jacobus Ziengs (Resigned on 11 June 2012)
Nan-independent Non-Execuiive Director

The RMC met 7 fimes during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT'D)

(/i Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company will continue to leverage on the existing Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board ("NRC") which had taken effect as merged commitiee on 27 May
2010 of the ultimate holding cempany, as part of its governance structura.

The primary objective of the NRC is to establish a documented, formal and transparent
procedure for the appointment of directors, chief executive officer ("CEQ™) and key senior
officers, as well as assessment of the effectiveness of directors, the Board as a whole and
the performance of the CEQ and key senior officers.

Further, the NRC is also responsible to provide a formal and transparent procedure in
developing a remuneration policy for directors, CEO and key senior officers and ensuring
that compensation is competitive and consistent with the Company's culture, objectives and

sirategy.

The composition of the NRC is as follows:

Dato” Mohd Salieh Hj Harun
Independent Non-Executive Director

Tan Sri Dr Hadenan A Jalil
Independeni Non-Executive Director

Zainal Abidin Jamal

Nen-Independent Non-Executive Director

Daio’ Dr Tan Tat Wai
Independent Non-Executive Director

Alister Maitland
Independent Non-Executive Director

The NRC met 11 times during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTD)

(g9} Investment Committee

(h)

The objectives of the IC include, to present an opinion on the leng-term strategic investment
policy including real estate, as a reccmmendation for the Risk Management Meeting
("RMM")/RMC/Board hased on ALCO's advice, to establish the tactical investment policy on
the basis of the proposal by the investment manager and within the boundaries laid out in
the Investment Management Mandates ("IMM"), to test the policy conducted by the
investment manager against the strategic and tactical investment policy/asset management
mandate, to evaluate and approve the operational policy conducted by investment manager.
[t also evaluates, reviews and maintains the Investmeni Management Guidelines {“"IMG"),
based on ALCO's advice and negotiates conditions with, appoints or dismisses external fund
managers, custodians, banks and other financial intermediaries.

The IC reports o the Board of all the operating companies under MAHB.
The composition of the [C is as follows:

Dato' Sri Abdul Wahid Omar {Chairman)
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Dr. Syed Othman Syed Hussin Aihabshi
Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk R. Karunakaran
Iindependent Non-Executive Direcior

The IC met 4 times during the year.

Board Oversight Committee for Land Development

The Board Oversight Committee for Land Davelopment ("BOC") was established on 19 April
2012. The BOC is a governance body which carries an oversight function for property
development activities to be managed by the Property Development Steering Committee

("PDSC").

To achieve this objective, the BOC will need to approve as well as review and monitor
property development activities endorsed by the PDSC.

The BOC reports to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT'D)
(h) Board Oversight Committee for Land Development (Cont'd)
The compaosition of the BOGC is as follows:

Dato' Johan Ariffin (Chairman) (Appointed on 19 April 2012)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk R. Karunakaran (Appointed on 27 September 2012)
Investment Committee Member

Loh Lee Soon (Appointed on 19 April 2012)
Non-Executive Board Member

Hans J. J. De Cuyper (Appointed on 19 April 2012)
Executive Board Member
Chief Executive Director of MAHB

(Y Publlc accountabllity

As custodian of public funds, the Company’s dealings with the public are always fairly,
honestly and professionally conducted .

(i) Financial reporting

The Board takes responsibility for presenting a balanced and comprehensive assessment of
the Gompany's operafions and prospects each time it releases its annual financial
statements to shareholders. The AC of the Board assists by scrutinising the information to
be disclosed, ensure accuracy, adequacy and complateness.

DIRECTORS® BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that period, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate,
other than as may arise from the share options to be granted pursuant to the MBB Group
Employee Share Scheme ("ESS") of the ultimate holding company, MBB.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to
receive a benefit (other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received
or due and receivable by the directors as disclosed in Notes 30 and 36) by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a
member, or with a cempany in which he has a substantial financiai interest.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

According to the register of directors' shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end
of the financial year in shares and options over shares in the ultimate holding company, MBB
during the financial year were as follows:

Number of Ordinary Shares of RM1 each
1 January 31 December
2012 DRP* Bought/ 2012
4.6.2012 25.10.2012  Transfer

Ultimate holding company: MBB
Direct interest:

Dato' Mohd Salleh Hj Harun 314,782 - 7,869 - 322 651
Data' Johan Ariffin 126,337 4,500 3,862 23,663 158,362
Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid 10,390 - - 18,205 ** 28 685

Indirect interest:

Number of Ordinary Shares of RM1 each
1 January 31 December
2012 DRP* Bought/ 2012
4.6.2012 25.10.2012  Transfer

Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid 22,751 - - (@8205)" 4,456
* DRP = Dividend Reinvestment Plan

** Transfer of shares held by a nomines to self thus increasing direct holding by 18,295 and reducing Indirect
holding by the sams amount.

Number of Options over Qrdinary Shares of RM1 each

Origlnal 1 January Granted 31 December
Exercise Price 2042 30.4.2012 Exercised 2012

Ultimate holding company: MBB
Hans J. J. De Cuyper RMB8.82* 200,000 - - 200,000
RMB.78% - 100,000 - 100,000

# The option price had been adjusted from RM8.82 to RM8.78 on 28 December 2011, then to RM8.76 on & June 2012
and lastly fo RM8.75 on 29 October 2012 due to DRP.

*#*The option price had been adjusted from RM8.78 to RMS.76 on 5 June 2012 and then to RM8.75 on 29 October
2012 due to DRP.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS {CONTD)

Number of Restricted Shares Units {"RSU"} of ordinary shares

of RM1 each
1 January  Granted 31 December
2012 30.4.2012 Vested Exercised 2012
Ultimate holding company: MBB
Hans J. J. De Cuyper 75,000 75,000 - - 150,000

The remaining options and RSU which were granted to the director on 23 June 2011 and 30 April
2012 have not been vested as at 31 December 2012. The remaining options and RSU will be
vested and exercisable or awarded upon fulfilment of vesting conditions or predetermined
performance metrics including service period, performance target and performance period.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors in office had any interest in shares of the
Company or its related corporations during the financial year,

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a) Before the statement of financial position and income statement of the Company were made
out, the directors took reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts
and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that ali known
bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful
debts; and

(i} to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown
in the zccounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down io
an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

(b} At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render:

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in
the financial statements of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

_ (i) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Company
' misleading.

{¢) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have

arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

10
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT'D})

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which would render any
amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

() As at the date of this report, there does not exist:

)

(@

0]

(ii)

any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year.

In the opinion of the direcfors:

(i

(if)

no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely fo become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which
will or may affect the ability of the Company to meet its obligations when they fall due;
and

no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect
substantially the resulis of the operations of the Company for the financial year in which
this report is made.

For the purpose of paragraphs (e) and (f), contingent or other liabilities do not include
liabilities arising from conftracts of insurance underwritten in the ordinary course of business
of the Company.

Before the statement of financial position and income statement of the Company were made
out, the directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that there was adequate insurance
contract liabilities in accordance with the valuation methods specified in Part D of the Risk-
Based Capital Framework ("RBC Framework") for insurers issued by BNM.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The subsequent event after the financial year end is disclosed in Note 42 to the financial
statements.

11
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AUDITORS

The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 8 February
2013.

it

DATO' MOHD SALL J HARUN HANS J.J. DE CUYPER

12
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

We, Dato' Mohd Salleh Hj Harun and Hans J.J. De Cuyper, being two of the directors of Etiga
Insurance Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying
financial statements set cut on pages 16 to 158 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards, and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 Dacember 2012 and of the results and the cash flows
of the Company for the year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Beard in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 8 February
2013.

DATQO' MOHD SALLEH/HJ HARUN HANS J.J. CUYPER

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

I, Kamaludin Ahmad, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Ftiga
Insurance Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements
set out on pages 16 to 158 are in my opinion correct, and | make this solemn declaration
conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by

the abovenamed KAMALUDIN AHMAD

at Kuala Lumpur in Wilayah -
Persekutuan on 8 February 2013 KAMALUDIN AHMAD

2-1G-17, KOMPLEXS NIAGA UTAMA.
TINGKAT TERBAWAH, 13
JALAN BANGSAR UTAMA 1,
BANGSAR UTAMSA,
59000 KUALA LUMPUR.
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Independent auditors® report to the member of WWW.EY.COm

Etiga Insurance Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statement of Etiga Insurance Berhad, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012 of the Company, and the income
statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 16 to 158,

Directors’ responsibifity for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as
to give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the reguirements of the Companies Act, 1965
in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internat control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmenis, we consider internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a
basis for our audit opinion. :

14
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independent auditors’ report to the member of
Etiga insurance Berhad (Cont'd)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

QOpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financiat position of the
Company as at 31 December 2012 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2012 in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965

in Malaysia.
Report on other [egal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report

that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to
be kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Other matters

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with
Section 174 of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

E"""‘fywﬁ Jrk I %”MJ
Ernst & Young Brandon Brude Sta Maria

AF: 0039 No. 2937/09/13 ()
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuata Lumpur, Malaysia
8 February 2013

15
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

Assets:

Froperty, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Prepaid land lease payments
Intangible assets

Investment in associate
Investments

Financing receivables
Reinsurance assets
Insurance receivables

Other receivables

Derivative assets

Current tax assets

Cash and bank balances
Total Assets

Equity and liabilities:
Sheare capital
Reserves

Total Equity

Insurance contract liabililias
Deferred tax liabilities
Insurance payables

Other payables

Dividend payable

Current tax liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Note

TR oo O®e®e W

16
17

18
19
20
21

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RA'CO0 RM'000 RM'000
111,087 110,304 111,889
569,704 515,070 516,360

20,341 20,644 20,796
25,827 28,462 24,502
152 152 152 .

13,265,325 12,521,592 12,216,293

266,379 276,092 311,918

1,691,509 1,437,421 1,318,371
386,074 278,332 289,934
248,297 170,204 164,700
688 33,007 41,782
6,602 97,439 97,441
142,452 128,372 256,669

16,734,527 15,618,181 15,370,805
162,151 162,161 152,151

2,422,180 2,391,456 2,454,330
2,574,341 2,543,607 2,606,481

12,665,407 12,011,256 11,643,167
428,499 414,642 422,428
405,177 331,663 322,331
292,355 261,192 332,772
350,329 - -

17,419 55,821 43,626

14,160,186 13,074,574 12,764,324

16,734,527 15,618,181 15,370,805

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

16
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia}

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Note

Operating revenue 22
Gross earned premiums 23(a)
Earned premiums ceded to reinsurers 23(b)
Net earned premiums
Fee and commission income 24
Investment income 25 .
Realised gains 26
Fair value (losses)/gains 27
Other operating revenug, net 28
Other revenue
Gross benefits and claims paid 29(a)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 29(b)
Gross change to contract liabilities 29(c)
Change in contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers 29(d)
Net benefits and claims
Management expenses 30
Fee and commission expenses 31
Other expenses
Profit before taxation
Taxation 3z
Net profit for the year/period
Earnings per share {sen)

Basic 33

11.2012tc  1.7.2011 to
31122012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
3,358,478 1,537,708
2,830,263 1,309,151
(852,614)  (359,888)
1,977,649 949,263
59,727 27,703
588,088 204,347
261,158 100,728
(8,528) 38,413
63,783 17,166
064,228 478,357
(1,821,877)  (701,565)
248,789 75,877
(689,307)  (496,820)
317,851 179,875
(1.944544) ~ (942,633)
301,021y {146,311)
(209,153)  (104,831)
(510,174) _ (251,142)
487,159 233,845
(140,056) (81,382)
347,103 152,463
228.13 100.21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

17
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia})

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

1.1.2012t0 1.7.2011 to
Note 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
Net profit for the year/perlod 347,103 152,463
Other comprehensive income:
Net gain/(loss) on AFS financial assels
- Gain on fair value changes 126,882 55,691
- Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal (96,724) (100,461)
Tax effect relafing to AFS financial assets 32 (7,822) 11,427
22,336 {33,343)
Gainf(loss) on foreign currency translation 11,624 (1,695)
Other comprehensive incomel/(loss) for the
year/period, net of tax 33,960 (35,038}
Total comprehensive income for the year/period 381,063 117,425

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Fair value loss/(gain) on investment

Fair value gain on investment property
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
Accretion of discount on invesiments

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment properties

Gain on foreign exchange

Write back of impairment of insurance receivables
Bad debt written off

(Write back of)/allowance for impairment of other receivables

Allowance for impairment of finaneing receivables

Net gain on disposal of investments

Interest income

Impairment on investments

Gross dividend income

Rental income

Loss from operations before changes in

operating assets and liabilities

Changes in working capital:
Increase in reinsurance assets
(Increase)/decrease in insurance receivables
Increase in other receivables
Decrease in loans

{Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related parties

Increasef(decreass) in other payables
Increase in insurance contract liabilities
Increase in insurance payables
Decrease/(increase) in LAR
Interest income received
Dividend income received
Rental income received
Foreigh exchange fluctuation

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
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1.1.2012t0  1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012  31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
487,159 233,845
8,300 7,955
9,544 1,976
35,404 (53,528)
(48,915) (40)
303 152
(8,364) (14,982)
(102) -
(140) (69)
(41,271) {14,826)
(22,031) (8,307)
6,854 2,340
(3,396) 3,244
487 159
(260,916)  (100,659)
(498,184)  (237,700)
22,039 15,155
(58,259) (28,138)
(28,215) (16,127)
(399,713)  (207,550)
(254,178)  (119,050)
(90,533) 15,681
(63,521) (6,812)
9,264 35,664
(7,984) 8,650
34,931 (76,075)
629,432 431,030
73,514 11,730
351,930 (151,996)
478,738 237,864
60,993 27,488
34,646 10,321
11,627 (1,695)
869,146 215,250
(81,104) ° (60,070)
788,042 155,180
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of investments
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investment property
Purchase of investment properties
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activity

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year/period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and bank balances:
General insurance and shareholder’s funds
Life insurance fund

14.2012t0  1.7.2011 to
31422012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
4,380,568 1,781,317
(5,134,006)  (1,872,584)
2,390 4,772
421 1,400
(6,000) -
(11,069) (11,081)
(7.166) (6,002)
(774,952) __ (102,178)

- (180,209)

- (180,299)

13,080 (127,297)
129,372 256,669
142,452 129,372
72,188 88,044

70,264 41,328
142,452 120,372

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2012

1.

2.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Company include the underwriting of general and life insurance
businesses.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the
financial year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.
The registered office of the Company is located at Level 19, Tower C, Dataran Maybank,
No. 1, Jalan Maarof, 58000 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

The holding and ultimate holding companies of the Company are Maybank Ageas Holdings
Berhad ("MAHB") (formerly known as Mayban Ageas Holdings Berhad) and Malayan
Banking Berhad ("MBB") respectively, both of which are incorporated in Malaysia. MBB is a
licensed commercial bank listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The financial year end of the Company was changed from 30 June to 31 December in the
last financial period. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company for the current
financial year ended 31 December 2012 covers a twelve-month period compared to a six-
month period for the previous financial period ended 31 December 2011 and, consequently,
the comparative amounts for the income statement, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the related
notes are not comparable.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 8 February 2013.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Malaysian Financiai Reporting Standards ("MFRS"), International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS" and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. [n
previous financial years, the financial statements of the the Company were prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS") in Malaysia as modified by BNM
Guidelines. These are the Company's first annual financial statements prepared in
accordance with MFRS and the effects of the first-time adoption of MFRS Framework
are disclosed in Note 2.3,
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Cont'd)

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies. The financial statements are
presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company's functional currency, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RM'000) unless otherwise indicated.

As at the reporiing date, the Company has met the minimum capital requirements as
prescribed by the RBC Framework issued by BNM.

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(2} Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged fo profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment, except certain
land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore, is not depreciated.

Work-in-progress are also not depreciated as these assets are not available for
use. When work-in-progress is completed and the asset is available for use, it is
reclassified to the relevant category of property, plant and equipment.

Buildings on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of 50 years or the
remaining period of the respective leases.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Buildings on freehold land 2%
Furniture, fittings, equipment and renovations _ 20% - 25%
Computers and peripherals 25%
Electrical and security equipment 10%
Motor vehicles 25%
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(@)

{b)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation (Cont'd)

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each
financial year end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation
are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattemn of consumption of
the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and
equipment and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the net carrying amount is
recognised in the profit or loss,

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or
for capital appreciation or for both. Such properties are initially measured at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value. Fair value is arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties and is performed by firms of professional
independent valuers having an appropriate recognised professionai qualification
and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued
and/or periodic intervening valuation by interal professional, as appropriate.

Gain or losses arising from the changes in ihe fair values of investment properties
are recognised in the profit or loss in the financial year in which they arise.

A property interest under an operating lease is classified and accounted for as an
investment property on a property-by-property basis when the Company holds it to
earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both. Any such property interest
under an operating lease is classified as an investment property and carried at fair
value.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in
use. For a transfer from investment property to self-occupied property, the deemed
cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. For a
transfer from self-occupied property to investment property, the property is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy for property, plant and
equipment set out in Note 2.2(a) up to the date of change in use.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed off
or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the profit or loss
in the financial year in which they arise.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysla)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT D}

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(b)

{c)

Investment Properties (Cont'd)

Investment property under construction ("IPUC") is measured at fair value (when
the fair value is reliably determinable). IPUC for which fair value cannot be
determined reliably is measurad at cost less impairment.

The fair values of IPUC were determined at the end of the reporting period based
on the opinion of a qualified independent valuer and valuations were performed
using either the residual method approach or discounted cash flow approach, as
deemed appropriate by the valuer. Each IPUC is individually assessed.

The estimated value of future assets is based on the expected future income from
the project, using risk adjusted yields that are higher than the current yields of
similar completed property. The remaining expected costs of completion plus
margin are deducted from the estimated future assets value.

Leases
(i) Classification

A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the
Company all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of land and
buildings are classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as
leases of other assets and the land and buildings elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.

Al leases that do not transfer substantially all the risk and rewards are
classified as operating leases with the following exceptions:

- Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property is classified as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a finance lease; and

- Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value of the building
situated therean at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
heid under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(c) Leases (Cont'd)

(ii}

(iti)

(iv)

Finance Leases - The Company as Lessee

Useful lives of all leasehold buildings are shorter than the lease term of the
leasehold land on which the buildings are located. As such, all risks and
rewards incidentat to the ownership of such assets would be deemed to have
been substantially transferred to the Company at the end of their useful lives.
All leasehold buildings are therefore classified as finance lease in the financial
statemenis.

Buildings held under finance lease are recognised as assets in the statement
of financial position of the Company and measured in accordance with MFRS
116 - Property, Plant and Equipment and MFRS 140 - Investment Properties.

Operating Leases - The Company as Lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are presented on the statement of
financial position according to the nature of the assets. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on & straight-line basis aver the lease term.

Operating Leases - The Company as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. In the case of a [ease of land and
buildings, the minimum lease payments or the up-iront payments made are
allocated, whenever necessary, between the land and buildings elements in
proportion to the relative fair values for leasehold interests in the land and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The up-front
payment represents prepaid lease payments and are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd)

(d)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include software development cost and computer software. An
intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the expected future economic benefits that are aftributable to it will
flow to the Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is their fair values at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are camied at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumutated impairment losses, except for software
development cost which are not subject to amortisation. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a sfraight-line basis over the
estimated economic useful lives and are assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indicaticn that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an iniangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the cash-
generating unit fevel.

The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is also reviewed annually
to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to be supportable.

(i} Software development costs

Software development in progress are tested for impairment annually and
represent development expenditure on software. Following the initial
recognition of the development expenditure, the cost model is applied
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. When development is complete and the asset is availabie for use, it is
reclassified to computer software and amortisation of the asset begins. During
the period of which the asset is not yet in use, it is tested for impairment
annually.

(ii) Computer software
The useful lives of computer software are amortised using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives. Impairment is assessed whenever

there is indication of impairment and the amortisation period and method are
also reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(e)

(f

Investment In Associate And Basis of Non-Consolidation

An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence and that is
neither a subsidiary nor a joint-venture. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not in
control or joint control over those policies.

In the Company's financial statements, investment in associate is stated at cost
less impairment losses. On disposal of such investment, the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and their carrying amount is included in the profit or loss.

As permitted under MFRS128: Investments in Associates and Joint Veniures, the
investment in associate has not been accounted for under the equity method
because the ultimate holding company, MBB produces financial statemenis
available for public use that comply with MFRS.

Financial Assels

Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or less, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition, and the categories include financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL"), loans and receivables ("LAR") and available-for-sale financial
assets ("AFS"). .

(i} Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held-for-trading ("HFT")
and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL. Financial
assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Included in financial assets held-for-
trading are derivatives (including separated embedded derivatives) and
financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

() Financial Assets (Cont'd}

0

(i)

Financlal assets at FVTPL {Cont'd)

For financial assets designated at FVTPL, upon initial recognition the following
criteria must he met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or

- the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial
liabilities or both, which are managed and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy.

Subsequent fo initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss, Net gains or losses on financial assefs at FVPTL
do not include exchange differences, interest and dividend income. Exchange
differences, interest and dividend income on financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other income.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

LAR

LAR are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. For the accounting policies with respect to
insurance receivables and reinsurance assets, refer to Note 2.2(r) and Note
2.2(j) respectively.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction cost and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
and through the amorfisation process.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd)

(f}

(9}

Financial Assets {Cont'd)
(iiiy AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified in any of the two preceding categories.

After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. Any
gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income except for impairment losses,
foreign exchange gains or losses on monetary instruments and interest
calculated using the effective interest method which are recognised in the
profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
financial asset is derecognised.

Investments in equity instruments whaose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured &t cost less accumulated impairment losses.

A finrancial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows
from the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and any cumuiative gains or losses that had been recognised in other
camprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date
that the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.

Fair value of Financial Assets at FVTPL and AFS

The fair value of financial assets that are actively traded in organised financial
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices for assets at the close
of business at the reporting date. ‘

For financial assets in quoted unit and real estate investment trusts, fair value is
determined by reference to published prices. Investments in unquoted equity
instrument that do not have quoted market prices in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost and assessed for
impairment at each reporting date.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(g) Fair value of Financial Assets at FVTPL and AFS (Cont'd)

For financial assets where there is no active market such as unquoted fixed
income securities i.e. unquoted bonds, Malaysian Government Securities ("MGS"),
Government {nvestment Issues ("GII"), government guaranteed bonds, Khazanah
bonds, fair values are determined by reference io indicative bid prices obtained
from Bondweb. In case of defaulted or bad bond there will be internal valuation
done to determine the fair value of the bond. The fair values of structured deposits
are based on latest market prices obtained from the respective issuer. The market
value of NCDs ("NCD") are determined by reference to BNM's Interest Rate Swap.

In case of defaulted or other bonds, where such indicative prices are not available,
an internal valuation is performed by qualified personnel to determine the fair value
of the bonds.

Over-the-counter derivatives comprise forward foreign exchange contracts,
currency on swap contracts and options. They are revalued at each reporting date
based on valuations provided by the financial institutions in accordance with
market convention.

The fair value of floating rate and over-night deposits with financial institutions is
their carrying value which is the cost of the deposit/placement.

if the fair value cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are
measured at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition
of the instrument or the amount received on issuing the financial liability. Alf
transaction costs directly aftributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost
of the investment.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(h)

Impairment of insurance receivables and financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be
impaired if and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has ocurred after the initizl recognition of the asset and that
loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset.

(i}

Insurance receivables

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
insurance receivables has been incurred, the Company considers factors such
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer
or obligor and default or significant delay in payments. Insurance receivables
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics.
Objective evidence of impairment for a porifolio of receivables could include
the Company's past experience of collecting payments, increase in the

. number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period

and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

If such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference belween the assel's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recagnised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on insurance receivables are recognised as a reduction
against the carrying amount through the use of an allowance account. When
an insurance receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in
prefit or loss.,
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(Cont'd)

(h) Impairment of insurance receivables and financial assets (Cont'd)

(ii) AFS financial assets

Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial
difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading
market are considerations to determine whether there is objective evidence
that investment securities classified as AFS financial assets are impaired.

if an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation)
and its current fair value, less any impairment losses previously recognised in
profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.

Impairment losses on AFS equity investiments are not reversed through the
profit or loss in the subsequent periods. Increases in fair value, if any,
subsequent to impairment toss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
Far AFS debt investments, impairment losses are subseguently reversed in
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss in profit or loss.

Unguoted equity securities carried at cost

If there is aobjective evidence that an impairment loss on financial asset carried
at cost has been incurred, the camying amount will be written down fo the
recoverable amount, the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for similar securities. The
amount of impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss and such
impairment losses are not reversed subsequent to its recognition.

(iil) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment loss as a result of the occurrence of
loss event(s) after initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(i}

{i

Impairment of non-flnancial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual
impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate
of the asset's recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive
income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive
income up to the amount of any previcus revaluation when the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and its
written down to its recoverable amount.

An assessment is performed at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase
cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is
recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment loss on
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Reinsurance assets

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of their business. Ceded
reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from their obligations to
policyholders. For both ceded and assumed reinsurance, premiums, claims and
benefits paid or payable are presented on a gross basis.

Reinsurance arrangements, entered into by the Company, that meet the
classification requiremenis of insurance contracts as described in Note 2.2(k) are
accounted for as noted below, Arrangements that do not meet these classification
requirements are accounted for as financia! assets.

Reinsurance assets represent amounts recoverable from reinsurers for insurance
contract liabilities which have yet to be seftled at the reporting date. Amounts
recoverable from reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts
associated with the underlying insurance contract and the terms of the relevant
reinsurance arrangements,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(i}

(k)

Reinsurance assets (Cont'd)

At each reporting date, or more frequently, the Company assesses whether
ohjective evidence exists that reinsurance assets are impaired. Objective evidence
of impaimment for reinsurance assets are similar to those noted for insurance
receivables as described in Note 2.2(h)(i}. If any such evidence exists, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted af the
financial asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expired or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Product Classification

The Company issues contracts that contain insurance risk or both insurance and
financial risks.

Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of 2 specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate,
index of price or rate, credit rating or credit index or other variables, provided in the
case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the
contract. Insurance risk is risk other than financial risk.

An insurance contract is a contract under which an entity has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate
the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company defines whether
significant insurance risk has been accepted by comparing benefits paid or
payable on the occurence of an insured event against benefits paid or payable if
the insured event does not occur. If the ratio of the former exceeds the latter by 5%
or more, the insurance risk accepted is deemed to be significant.

Investment contracis are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no

significant insurance risk. Based on this definition, alt policies issued by the
Company are considered insurance contracts as at the reporting date.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(k) Product Classification (Cont'd)

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an
insurance contract for the remainder of its life-time, even if the insurance risk
reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are
extinguished or expired. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified as an
insurance contract after inception of isurance risk becomes significant.

Insurance and investment contracts are further classified as being either with or
without discretionary participation features ("DPF"). DPF is a contractual right o
receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that are:

(a) likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits; and
(b} whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the issuer; and
(¢) contractually based on the:

(i) performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of
contract; or

{ii) realised and/or unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of asset
held by the issuer; or

(i} the profit or loss of the company, fund or other entity that issues the
contract,

L ocal statutory regulations and the terms and conditions of these contracts set out
the bases for the determination of the amounts on which the additional
discretionary benefits are based and within which the Company may exercise their
discretion as to the quantum and timing of their payment to contract holders. All
DPF liabilities, including unallocated surpluses, both guaranteed and discretionary,
are held within insurance contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.

For financia! options and guarantees which are not closely related to the host
insurancs contract andfar investment contract with DPF, bifurcation is required to
measure these embedded derivatives separately at FVTPL. However, bifurcation is
not required if the embedded derivative is itself an insurance contract and/or
investment contract with DPF, or if the host insurance contract and/or investment
contract itself is measured at FVTPL.
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(k) Product Classification (Cont'd)

(B

When an insurance contract contains both financial risk (or deposit} and significant
insurance risk component and the cash flows from the two components are distinct
and can be reliably measured, the underlying components are required to be
unbundled unless all obligations and rights arising from the deposit component has
already been accounted for. Any premiumn relating to the insurance risk component
is to be accounted for on the same bases as insurance contracts and the
remaining element is accounted for as a deposit through the statement of financial
position similar to investment contracts. As at the reporting date, all obligations and
rights arising from the deposit components in contracts issued by the Company are
accounted for as insurance contract liabilities. Accordingly, the Company has opted
not to unbundle these insurance contracts.

Pramium income

Premiums represent consideration paid for an insurance contract and is accounted
for as follows:

(i} General insurance business

Premium income is recognised in the financia! period in respect of risks
assumed during that particular financial period. Premiums from direct business
are recognised during the financial periocd upon the issuance of debit notes.
Premiums in respect of risks incepted for which debit notes have not been
issued as of the reporting date are accrued at that date.

Inward facultative reinsurance premiums are recognised in the financial period
in respect of the facultative risks accepted during that pariicular financial
period, as in the case of direct policies, following the individual risks’ inception
dates.

Inward treaty reinsurance premiums are recognised on the basis of periodic
advices received from ceding insurers.

Qutward reinsurance premiums are recognised in the same financial period as
the original policies to which the reinsurance relates.
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{

Premium income (Cont'd)

(ii) Life insurance business

Premium income is recognised as soon as the amount of the premium can be
reliably measured. Initial premium is recognised from inception date and
subsequent premium is recognised when it is due. At the end of the financial
period, all due premiums are accounted for to the extent that they can be
reliably measured.

Outward reinsurance premiums are recognised in the same financial period as
the original policies to which the reinsurance relates.

Net creation of units, which represents premiums paid by policyholders as
payment for a new contract or subsequent payments to increase the amount
of that confract, are reflected in profit or loss. Net creaticn of units is
recognised on a receipt basis.

Creation/cancellation of units is recognised in the financial statements at the
next valuation date, after received the request {o purchase/sell units from the
policyholders,

{m)} General insurance contract liabilities

General insurance contract liabilities are recognised and measured in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the respective insurance contracts and are also
based on regulatory guidelines, specifically, the Framework issued by BNM.

The insurance confract liabilities of the Company comprise claim FKabilities and
premium liabilities.

(i) Claim liabllities

Claims liabilities represent the Company's obligations, whether contractual or
otherwise, to make future payments in relation to ali claims that have been
incurred as at reporting date. Claim liabilities are the estimated ultimate cost of
all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported or
not, tagether with related claims handling costs and other recoveries. Claim
liakilities are comprised of claims incurred and reported but still outstanding as
at reporting date, as well as claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR"). The
estimation includes a provision of risk margin for adverse deviation ("PRAD")
as required by Bank Negara Malaysia.
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{m) General insurance contract liabilities (Cont'd)

()

(if)

Claim liabilities (Cont'd)

The claim liabilities are determined based upon the valuations performed by a
qualified Actuary, using a range of actuarial claims projection technigues
based on, amongst others, actual claims development patterns. The liability is
not discounted for the time value of money.

Premium liabilities

Premium liabilities represent the Company's future obligations on insurance
contracts as represented by premiums received for risks that have not yet
expired. The movement in premium liabilities is released over the term of the
insurance contracts and is recognised as premiurn income.

In accordance with the valuation requirements of the RBC Framework,
premium liabilities are reported at the higher of the aggregate of the unearned
premium reserves ("UPR") for all lines of business or the best estimate value
of the reinsurer's unexpired risk reserves ("URR") at the end of the financial
year and a PRAD calculated at the overall fund level.

. Unearned premium reserves ("UPR"}

The short term UPR represent the portion of the net premiums of
insurance paolicies written that relate to the unexpired periods of policies
at the end of the financial period. In determining the UPR as at the date
of the statement of financial position, the method that most accurately
reflects the actual unearned premium is used as follows:

- 25% method for marine cargo and aviation cargo, and transit
business

- 1/24th method for all other classes of Malaysian policies reduced
by the comesponding percentage of accounted gross direct
business commissions o the comrresponding premiums, not
exceeding limits specified by BNM.

- 1/8th method for all classes of overseas freaty inward business
with a deduction of 20% for commission.

- Non-annual policies are time-apportioned cver the period of the
risks after deducting the commission, that relate to the unexpired
pericds of policies at the end of the financial period.
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{m) General insurance contract liabilities (Cont'd)

(iiy Premium liabilities (Cont'd)
. Unexpired risk reserves ("URR")

The URR is the prospective estimate of the expected future payments
arising from future events insured under policies in force as at the end of
reporting date and also includes allowance for expenses, including
overheads and cost of reinsurance, expected to be incurred during the
unexpired period in administering these policies and setiiing the relevant
claims, and expected future premium refunds. URR is estimated via an
actuarial valuation performed by a qualified Actuary.

(n} Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities are determined in accordance with the RBC
Framework. All life insurance liabilities are valued using a prospective aciuarial
valuation based on the sum of the present value of future benefits and expenses
less future gross considerations arising from the poficies discounted at the
appropriate risk discount rate. This method is known as the gross premium
valuation method.

For non-participating business, the expected future cash flows of guaranteed
benefits are determined using best estimate assumptions with an appropriate
allowance for PRAD from expected experience such that an overall level of
sufficiency of policy reserves at a 75% confidence level is secured. For
participating business, the higher of the guaranteed benefit liabilities or the total
benefit liabilities at fund level is taken. In computing total benefit liabilities
computation, the expected cash flows of total guaranteed and non-guaranteed
benefits are determined using best estimate assumptions together with the
assumption that the current bonus rate to policyholders will be maintained,

The liabilities in respect of the non-unit component of an investment-linked policy
have been valued at the risk-free discount rate by projecting future cash flows fo
ensure that all future outflows can be met at the product level without recourse to
additional finance or capital support at any fufure time during the duration of the
investment-linked policy. The value of the unit component is the net asset value of
the fund.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd)

(n)

(0)

Life insurance contract liabilities {Cont'd)

In the case of a life policy where a part of, or the whole of the premiums are
accumulated in a fund, the accumulated amount, as declared to the policy owners,
are set as liabilities if the accumulated amount is higher than the figure calculated
using the gross premium valuation method.

For yearly renewable policies covering death or survival contingencies, the
liabilities have been valued on an unexpired risk basis.

For yearly renewable policies covering other contingencies such as medical
benefits, it comprises best estimate premium and claim liabilities with an
appropriate allowzance for PRAD.

Adjustments to the liabilities at each reporiing date are recorded in profit or loss.
Profits originating from margins of adverse deviation on rn-off contracts are
recognised in profit or loss over the life of the contract whereas losses are fully
recogniseq in profit or loss during the first year of run-off.

The RBC Framework for Insurers issued by BNM mests the Liability Adequacy
Test requirements stipulated under MFRS 4.

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, the Company reviews all insurance coniract liabilities 1o
ensure that the carrying amount of the liabilities is sufficient or adequate to cover
the obligations of the Company, contractual or otherwise, with respect to insurance
contracts issued. In performing this review, the Company discounts all contractual
cash flows and compares this against the carrying value of insurance contract
liabilities. Any deficiency is recognised in profit or loss.

The estimation of claim liabilities and premium liabilities performed at reporting
date is part of the liability adequacy tests petrformed by the Company. Based on
this, all insurance contract liabilities as at reporting date are deemed to be
adequate,
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(p) Benefits and Claims expenses

(i)

(ii)

General insurance business

Claims expenses are charged to profit or loss as incurred based on the
estimated liability for compensation owed io palicyholders or third parties
damaged by the policyholders. They include direct and indirect claims and
settlement costs and arise from events that have occurred up to the end of the
reporting period even if they have not yet been reported to the Company.

Life insurance business

Benefits and claims expenses incurred during the financial year are
recognised when a claimable event occurs and/or the insurer is notified.

Benefits and claims expenses, including settiement costs, are accounted for
using the case-by-case method and for this purpose, the amounts payable
under a pcolicy are recognised as follows:

- maturity and other policy benefit payments due on specified dates

are treated as claims payable on the due dates; and

- death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as

claims payable, on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the
assured or accurrence of contingency covered.

Recoveries on reinsurance claims are accounted for in the same financial year
as the original claims are recognised.

(g) Commission Expenses and Acquisition Costs

)

General insurance business

The gross cost of acquiring and renewing insurance policies net of income
derived from ceding reinsurance premiums is recognised as incurred and
properly allocated to the pericds in which it is probable they give rise to
income.
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(q)

(r)

(s}

Commission Expenses and Acquisition Costs (Cont'd)
{ii) Life insurance business

Gross commission and agency expenses, which are costs directly incurred in

securing premium on insurance policies, net of income derived from reinsurers

in the course of ceding of premiums to reinsurers, are charged to profit or loss
~in the period in which they are incurred.

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial
recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are measured at amortised
cost, using the effective vield method.

If there is objective evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and
recognises the impairment loss in profit or loss. Objective evidence of impairment
for insurance receivable and the determination of consequential impairment losses
are as described in Note 2.2(h}.

Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for
financial assets, as described in Note 2.2(f), have been met.

Other Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transactions will flow to the enterprise and the amount of the revenue can
be measured reliably.

(i) InferestIncome

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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(s)

{t

(u)

Other Revenue Recognition (Cont'd)
{ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised on a declared basis when the Company's right
to receive payment is established.

() Rental Income

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
The aggregate costs of incentives provided 1o lessees are recegnised as a
reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straighi-line basis.

Fee and commission income

Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services,
surrenders and other contract fees. These fees are recognised as revenue over
the period in which the related services are performed. If the fees are for services
to be provided in future periods, then, they are deferred and recognised over those
future periods.

Management fee income eamed from the investment-inked business is
recognised on an accrual basis based on the net asset value of the investment-
linked funds.

Employee Benefits
(i) Short-term Benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions (*SOCSO") are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Short-term accumulating compensated absences
such as paid annuzal leave are recognised when services are rendered by
employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences.
Short-term, non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are
recognised when the absences oceur.
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{u) Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

(ii) Defined Contribution Plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the
Company pays fixed contribufions into separate funds and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if any of the funds do not
hold sufficient funds to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services
in the current and preceding financial years. Such contributions are
recognised as an expense in the profit or loss as incurred. As required by law,
the Company makes such contributions to the Employees Provident Fund
("EPF") and foreign branches of a subsidiary makes contributions to that
country's statutory pension scheme, the Singapore Central Provident Fund
("CPF") and Brunei Tabung Amanah Pekerja ("TAP").

(iii) Share-hased Compensation

ESS

The ESS is an equity-setiled share-based compensation plan that allows the
Directors and employees to acquire shares of MBB. The total fair value of
share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in the amount due to MBB over the vesting period and
taking into account the probability that the options will vest. The fair value of
share options is measured at grant date, taking into account, if any, the
market vesting conditions upon which the options were granted but excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of opticns that are
expected to become exercisable on vesfing date.

At each reporting date, MBB revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable over the vesting period. Settlement
with the ultimate holding company in respect of the arrangement of the
scheme is by cash over the vesting period.
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(u) Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

{(ili) Share-based Compensation {Cont'd)

Restricted share units {"RSU")

Senior management personnel of the MBB are entitled to performance-based
restricted shares as consideration for services rendered. The RSU may be
settled by way of issuance and transfer of new MBB shares or by cash at the
absolute discretion of the ESS Committee. The total fair value of RSU granted
to senior management employees is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in the reserve within the MBB's equity over the vesting
period and taking into account the probability that the RSU will vest. The fair
value of RSU is measured at grant date, taking into account, the market
vesting conditions upon which the RSU were granted but excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of shares that are expecied to be
awarded on the vesling date.

(v} Foreign Currencies

(i)

(if)

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency").

The financial statements are presentied in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is
also the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign Gurrency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the
transaction dates.
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(v} Foreign Cuirrencies (Cont'd)
(ii) Foreign Currency Transactions (Cont'd)

Monetary assets and liabilitles denominated in foreign currencies are
translzted at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
mezasured at fair value are franslated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the seitlement of monetary items or on
translating monetary items at the reporting date are recognised in profit or Joss
except for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of
the Company's net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign
currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign currency translation reserve
is reclassified from equity {o profit or loss of the Company on disposal of the
foreign operation.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for the
differences arising on the translation of non-menetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised direcily in equity. Exchange differences
arising from such non-monetary items are also recognised directly in equity.
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(v) Foreign Currencies (Cont'd)
(iif) Foreign Operations

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency ("RM") of the Company's
financial statements are translated into RM as follows:

- assets and liabilities of foreign operations presented are franslated at
the closing rate prevailing as at the date of the statement of financial
paosition.

- income and expenses for income statement are franslated at
average exchange raies for the year, which approximate the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

- all resulfing exchange differences are taken directly to other
comprehensive income through foreign currency translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the sumulative amount recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the profit or loss.

The principal exchange rate far every unit of foreign exchange currency ruling
at date of the statement of financial position used for translation of foreign
operation is as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
Singapore Dollar 250 244 246
Brunei Dollar 2.50 2.44 2.46
Us Dollar 3.06 3.18 3.02

{w) Income Tax

Income tax on the profit or less for the financial year comprises current and
deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in
respect of the taxable profit and surplus for the financial year and is measured
using the tax rates that have been snacted at the date of the statement of financial
position.
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(w) Income Tax (Cont'd}

(x)

Deferred tax is provided for, using the fiability method on temporary differences at
the date of the statement of financial position between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle,
deferred tax ligbilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax ¢redits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
negative goodwill or from the initia! recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the fransaction,
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period

when the asset is realised or the liability is setifed, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial
position. Deferred tax is recognised as income or expense and included in the
profit or loss for the period, except when it arises from a transaction which is
recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
direcly in equity, or when it arises from a business combination that is an
acquisition, in which case the deferred tax is included in the resuiting goodwill or
the amount of any excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the
acguiree’s identifiable assets, llabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the
combination.

Financial Llabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.

Financial liabilities, within the scope of MFRS 139, are recognised in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Company becomes a party fo the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are classified
as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial
liabilities.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd)

()

(v)

(@)

(aa)

Financial Liabilities (Cont'd)

During the financial year and as at the reporting date, the Company did not classify
any of its financial liabilities at FVTPL.

The Company's financial liabilities include payables, loans and borrowings.
Payables are recoghised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectlive interest
method.

Loan and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has a
conditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the [ability is
extinguished. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substaniially modified, such an exchange or modification is ftreated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recegnised in profit or loss.

Insurance Payables
Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition
at the fair value of the consideration paid/payable less directly attributable

transaction costs. Subsequent to inifial recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective yield method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and bank balances. The statement of
cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method.

Equity Instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are
recognised and accounted for in equity in the period in which they are declared.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

22

2.3

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
Transition to MFRS and application of MFRS 1

These are the Company's first annual financial statements prepared in accordance with
MFRS. In previous financial years, the financial statements of the Company were
prepared in accordance with FRS in Malaysia as modified by BNM.

The accounting policies set out in Notes 2.2 have been applied in preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2011 and in the preparation of the opening statement of financial
position at 1 July 2011 (which is alsc the Company’s date of transition).

There is no significant financial impact resulting from the adoption of MFRS.

Revised Guideline issued by Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM™) on Unallocated
surplus and AFS reserve for Non-Participating ('nen-Par"') fund

Up to the last reporting date of 31 December 2011, the life insurance confract liabilities
of the Company comprised of accumulated surpluses, estimated actuarial and claim
liabilities, Net Asset Value attribufable to unitholders and Available-for-Sale ("AFS")
reserves of all life insurance coniracts including those with discretionary paricipating
features (referred to as "Par') and those without (referred to as “non-Par”). In
accordance with MFRS 4 Insurance Confracts and the Framework for Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements issued by BNM, the non-Par unallocated surplus
do not meet the definition of a liability, that is, a present obligation of the Company
arising from past events, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of
economic benefits as the non-Par unallocated surplus represents the residual interest in
the assets of the non-Par after consideration of all liabilities.

In addition, in accordance with MFRS 139 Financial Instruments - Recognition and
Measurement, the non-Par AFS reserve should be accounted for as equity of the
Company. The classification of the non-Par unallocated surplus and AFS reserve of the
Company as a liability was made in accordance with the Guidelines issued by BNM and
was a modification to previous FRS approved by BNM under Section 90 of the
Insurance Act 1296.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONT'D)

2.4 Revised Guideline issued by Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM"} on Unallocated
surplus and AFS reserve for Non-Participating ("non-Par”} fund (Cont'd)

Effective on 1 January 2012, in accordance with the revised Guideline issued by BNM
and the adoption of MFRS by the Company, the non-Par unallocated surplus and AFS
reserve are now reclassified from liabilities to equity. This is a change in accounting
policy and has hence been adjusted retrospectively against prior year retained profits
and AFS reserves.

The effects on classification of non-Par unallocated surplus and AFS reserve and
description of the changes affecting prior years' opening statement of financial positicn
and the comparative statement of financial position, income statement and statement of
cemprehensive income are summatised below:

(a) Statement of financial position as at 1 July 2611

FRS as at Increase/ MFRS as at

30.6.2011  (Decrease} 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM000 RM'000
Equity
AFS reserve 61,978 71,815 133,453
Retained sarings 1,308,819 879,671 2,288,500
Liahilities
Insurance contract liabilities 13,037,119 {1,393,952) 11,643,167
Deferred tax liahilities 79,662 342,766 422428

(b) Statement of financial posltion as at 31 December 2011

FRS as at increasei MFRS as at
31.12.2011  {Decrease) 31.12.2011

RM'000 RM'00C RM'000
Equity
AFS reserve 51,578 48,572 100,150
Retained earnings 1,275,655 985,439 2,260,994
Liabilities
[nsurance contract liabilities 13,384,756 (1,373,500) 12,011,256
Deferred tax liabilities 75,153 339,489 414,642
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

2.4 Revised Guideline issued by Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM") on Unallocated

surplus and AFS reserve for Non-Participating ("non-Par") fund (Cont'd)

{¢) Income statement for the six months period ended 31 December 2011

FRS as at Increase/ MFRS as at
31.12.2011 (Decrease) 31.12.2011
RM'000Q RM'000 RM'Q00
Gross change in confract liabilities (504 511Y 7.691 {498 820)
Taxation (79,459) (1,923) (61,382)
Profit before taxation 226,154 7,691 233,845
Net profit for the year 146,695 5,768 152,463

(d} Statement of comprehensive income for the six months period ended 31
December 2011

FRS as at Increase! MFRS as at
31.12.2011  (Decrease} 31.12.2011

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Net gain on AFS financial assets:
- Gain on fair value changes 4,866 50,825 55,691
- Transfer to profit or loss upon
disposal {19,045) (81,4186) (100,481)
Tay effect relating to AFS financial
assets 3779 7,648 11,427

The following {ables provide esiimates of the extent to which each of the line items in
the statement of financial position, income statement and statement of comprehensive
income for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 are higher or lower than it would
have been had the previous policies been applied in the current financial year.

Effects on Statement of Financtal Position as at 31 December 2012

(Lower}fhigher
RM'000

AFS reserve (62,119)
Retained eamings {1,010,380)
Insurance contract liabilities 1,411,105
Deferred tax liabilifies (348,608)

53



9857 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia}

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)

24 Revised Guideline issued by Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM") on Unallocated

2.5

surplus and AF5 reserve for Non-Participating ("non-Par"} fund {Cont'd)
Effects on Income Statement for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

Higher/(lower)

RM'O00O .
Gross change in contract liabilities 33,265
Taxation (8,314
Profit before taxation (33,255)
Net profit for the year (24,941)

Effects on Statement of Comprehensive Income for the financial year ended 31
December 2012

(Lower)/higher
RM'000
MNet gain on AFS financial assets
- Gain on fair value changes (61,708)
- Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal 56,977
Tax effect relating fo AFS financial assets 1,182

Standards issued but not yet effective

As at the date of authorisation of these financiat statements, the following Standards,
Amendments and [ssues Committee ("IC") Interpretaticns have been issued by the
Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASB") but are not yet effective and have not
heen adopted by the Company.

Effective for financial periods heginning on or after 1 July 2012

MFRS 101 Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to
MFRS101)

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

MFRS 3 Business Combinations (IFRS 3 Business Combinations issued by IASB in
March 2004)

MFRS 10 Consofidated Financial Statements

MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

MFRS 12 Disclosure of inferests in Other Entifies

MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

MFRS 118 Employos Benefits
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)
2.5 Standards issued but not yet effective (Cont'd)
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 (Cont'd)

MFRS 127 Separale Financial Statements

MFRS 128 fnvesiments in Associates and Joint Ventures

MFRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (IAS 27 as revised by
IASB in December 2004)

Amendments to MFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsslting Financial Assets and Financiaf
Liabifities

Amendments fo MFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards - Government Loans

Amendments to MFRS 1 Firsi-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards (Annual Improvemenis 2009-2011 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statemenis {Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment (Annual Improvements 2009-
2011 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 132 Financial Insirurments: Presentation (Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle}

Amendments to MFRS 134 Inferim Financial Reporiing (Annual Improvements 2009-
2011 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 10 Consolidalted Financial Statements: Transition Guidance
Amendments to MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Transition Guidance

Amendments to MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance
IC Interprefation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Amendment to |C Interpretation 2 Members' Shares in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments (Annual iImprovements 2009-2011 Cycle)

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 132 Oifseiling Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.5 Standards issued hut not yet effective (Cont'd)

The management expects that the adoption of the above standards and interpretations
will have no material impact on the financial statements in the pericd of initial application
except as discussed below:

(@)

(b)

MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

MFRS 10 replaces part of MFRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that deals with consolidated financial statements and IC Interpretation
112 Consolidation ~ Special Pupose Entities.

Under MFRS 10, an investor controls an investee when (a) the investor has power
over an investee, {b) the investor has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvemnent with the investee, and (¢} the investor has ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. Under MFRS 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemenis, control was defined as the
power to govemn the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. :

MFRS 10 includes detailed guidance to explain when an investor has control over
the investee. MFRS 10 requires the investor to take into account alt relevant facts
and circumstances. The Company and its subsidiary are currently assessing the
impact that this Standard will have on the financial statements of the Company.
Based on preliminary analyses performed, no material impact is expected to have
on the financial statements of the Company.

MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

MFRS 11 replaces MFRS 131 Inferests in Joint Ventures and IC Inferpretation 113
Jointly-Controfled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers.
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.5 Standards issued but not yet effective (Cont'd)

(b) MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Cont'd)

(c)

(d}

The classification of joint arrangements under MFRS 11 is determined based on
the rights and obligations of the parties to the joint arrangements by considering
the structure, the legal form, the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the
arrangement and when relevant, other facts and circumstances. Under MFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

MFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities ("JCE"} using
proporticnate consolidation. Instead, JCE that meet the definition of a joint venture
must be accounted for using the equity method. The Company and its subsidiary
are currently assessing the impact that this Standard will have on the financial
statements of the Company. Based on preliminary analyses performed, no material
impact is expected ta have on the financial statements of the Company.

MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

MFRS 12 includes all disclosure requirements for interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are
required. This standard affects disclosures only and is expected to have no
significant impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

MFRS 127 Separate Financial Statements

As a consequence of the new MFRS 10 and MFRS 12, MFRS 127 is limited to
accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates in separate
financial statements.

As a consequence of the new MFRS 11 and MFRS 12, MFRS 128 is renamed as
MFRS 128 Investments in Asscciates and Joint Venfures. This new standard
describes the application of the equify method fo investments in joint ventures in
addition to associates.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D})

2.5 Standards issued but not yet effectlve (Cont'd)

{e)

(f)

{9)

MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

MFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under MFRS for all fair value
measurements. MFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair
value but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under MFRS
when fair value is required or permitted. The Company is currently assessing the
impact that this Standard will have on the financial positicn and performance of the
Company but based on preliminary analyses, no material impact is expected.

Upon adoption of MFRS 13, the Company will take into consideration the highest
and best use of certain properties in measuring the fair value of such properties.
The adoption of MFRS 13 is expected to result in higher fair value of certain
properties of the Company.

Amendments to MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements {Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 cycle)

The amendmenis 1o MFRS 101 change the grouping of items presented in other
comprehensive income. ltems that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or
loss at a future point in time (for example, exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would
be presented separately from items which will never be reclassified (for example,
actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and
buildings). The amendment affects presentation only and has no impact on the
Company’s financial position and performance.

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

MFRS 9 reflects the first phase of the work on the replacement of MFRS 139
Financial Instrurnents: Recognition and Measurement and applies to classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in MFRS
139 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The adoption of the
first phase of MFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of
the Company's financial assets. The Company will quantify the effect in
conjunction with the other phases, when the final standard including all phases is
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2.6 Slgnificant Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(a)

Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRSs require
management to exercise judgement on the use of estimates and make
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Although these estimates are based on
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may
differ from those estimates. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions used
that are significant to the financial statements, and areas involving higher degree
of judgement and complexity, are disclosed as below:

{i)

(ii)

Classification between Investment Properties and Property, Plant and
Equipment

The Company had developed certain criteria based on MFRS 140 in making
judgement whether a property qualifies to be classified as an investment
property. Investment properties are property held te earn rental income or for
capital appreciation or both.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production
ot supply of good or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Company would account for the portion separately. If the portien could not be
sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrafive purposes.

Impairment of Avajlable-for-Sale Assets

Significant judgement is required to assess impairment for Available-for-Sale
investments. The Company evaluates the duration and extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than cost; the financial health and near term
business outlook for the investee, including but not limited to factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology and aperational and
financial cash flow.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)

2.6 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments (Cont'd)

(a) Critical Judgements made in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)

(iii) Impairment of Receivables

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that a receivable is impaired. To determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment, the Company complies with BNM's Guidelines on
Financial Reporting for [nsurers {BNM/RH/GL003-28). According to the
Guidelines, objective evidence of impairment is deemed {o exist where the
receivables that are individually assessed for impairment is past due for more
than 80 days or 3 months. Cther factors considered by the Company are
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the receivables
and default or significant delays in payments.

(b} Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty as at reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(1)

(i)

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of a building's plant and equipment for example, elevators, lifts and
others and the self-occupied properties are depreciated on a straight line basis
over the estimated remaining useful lives. The Company estimates the useful
lives of these plant and equipment to be within 5 to 10 years.

The cost of self-occupied buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis.
The Company estimates the useful lives to be 50 years for freehold buildings
or the earlier of 50 years or the lease period for leasehold buildings.

Valuation of Investment Properties

The measurement of the fair value for investment properties is arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. Full
valuations on investment properties are performed by firms of professional
independent valuers at regular intervals, of not less than every 3 years.
Periodic intervening valuations on the investment properties are performed by
internal professional valuer.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D}

2.6 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments (Cont'd)

{b) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty {Cont'd)

(iii) Amortisation and Impairment of Other Intangible Asseis

(iv)

Intangible assets that can be separated and sold and have a finite useful life
are amortised over thair estimated useful lives.

The determination of the estimated useful life of these intangible assets
requires management to analyse the circumstances, the industry and market
practice and also to use judgement. At each dafe of the statement of financial
posttion, or more frequently when events or changes in circumstances dictate,
intangible assets are assessed for indications of impairment. If indications are
present, these assets are subject to an impairment review. The impairment
review comprises a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets with their
recoverable amount.

Uncertainty in accounting estimates for General Insurance business

The principal uncertainty in the genera!l business arises from the technical
provisions which include the premium liabilities and claim liabilities. The bases
of valuation of these liabilities is explained in Note 2.2(m).

The estimation basis for unearned premium reserves are explained in the
related accounting policy statement, whilst claim liabilities comprise provision
for outstanding claims. Generally, claim lizbilities are determined based upon
historical claims experience, existing knowledge of events, the terms and
conditions of the relevant policies and interpretation of circumstances.
Particularly relevant is past experience with similar cases, historical claims
development frends, legislative changes, judicial decisions, economic
conditions and claims handling procedure. It is certain that actual, future
contribution and claim liahilities will not enactly develop as projected and they
vary from the projections.

The estimates of the premium liabilittes and claim liabilites are therefore
sensitive to various factors and uncertainties. The establishment of technical
provisions is an inherently uncertain process and, is a consequence of this
uncertainty, the eventual settlement of contribution and claims liabilities may
vary from the initial estimates.

There may be significant reporting lags between the occurrence of an insured
event and the time it is actually reported. Following the identification and
notification of an insured loss, there may still be uncertainty as inflation,
judicial interpretations, legislative changes and claims handling procedures,
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.4 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments (Cont'd}

(b) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty {Cont'd)

{v}

(vi)

Valuation of Life Insurance Liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities are determined in accordance with the RBC
Framework. All life insurance liabilities are valued using a prospective actuarial
valuation based on the sum of the present value of future benefits and
expenses less future gross considerations arising from the policies discounted
at the appropriate risk discount rate. This method is known as the gross
premium valuation method.

There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the
estimation of life insurance liabilities.

The main assumptions used relate to mortality, morbidity, longevity, expenses,
withdrawal rates and discount rates.

These estimates are adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company's
unique risk exposures, provide the basis for the valuation of future policy
benefits payable,

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax implications arising from the changes in corporate income tax
rates are measured with reference to the estimated realisation and setilement
of temporary differences in the future periods in which the tax rates are
expected to apply, based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the date of the statement of financial position. While management's estimates
on the realisation and settlement of temporary differences are based on the
available information at the date of statement of financial position, changes in
business strafegy, future operating performance and other factors could
impact on the actual timing and amount of temporary differences realised and
seftled. Any difference between the actual amount and the estimated amount
would be recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which actual
realisation and seftlement occurs.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all allewances of impairment of
investments, net amortisation of premium in investmenis and other temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the benefits can be ufilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based on the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

# Properties consist of:

31.12.2012

Cost

At 1 January 2012
Transtation differences
At 31 December 2012

Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment Losses

At 1 January 2012

Charge for the year

Translation differences

At 31 December 2012

Net Book Value

31.12.2011

Cost

At 1 July 2011
Translation differences
At 31 December 2011

Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment Losses

At 1 July 2011

Charge for the period

Reclassification

Translation differences

At 31 December 2011

Net Book Value

1.7.2011
Net Beok Value

Buildings Buildings
Freehold onfreehold on leasehold

fand land [and Total
RM'000 RMW'000 RM'000 RM'000C
3,620 8,010 110,013 121,843
- - 72 72
3,620 8,010 110,085 121,715
- 5,238 26,297 31,535

- 18 2,201 2,212

- - 50 50

- 5,256 28,548 33,804
3.620 2,754 81,537 87,911
3,620 8,010 140,030 121,660
- - (17) (17)
3,620 8,010 110,013 121,643
- 4,701 25,737 30,438

- 9 1,100 1,109

- 528 (528) -
- - {12) {12)

- 5238 26,297 31,535
3,620 2772 83,716 0,108
3,620 3,309 84,293 01,222
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

4. [INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

31.12.2012

At 1 January 2012
Addition

Disposal

Fair value adjustment
At 31 December 2012

31.12.2011

At 1 July 2011
Disposal
Reclassification

Fair value adjustment
At 31 December 2011

1.7.2011

Investment
Freehold Leasehold property
land and land and under
buildings buildings construction Total
RM'0Q0 RM'000 RAN'O00 RWM'000
398,340 116,730 - 515,070
- - 6,000 8,000
(281) - - - {281)
20,694 28,221 - 48 915
418,753 144,951 6,000 568,704
398,570 117,790 - 518,360
(1,330 - - (1,330)
1,080 (1,060) - -
40 - - 40
308,340 116,730 - 515,070
398,570 117.790 - 516,360

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no
contractual obligations to either purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for
repaired, maintenance and enhancements.

Investment properties are stated at fair value in accordance with the policies as described in
Note 2.2 (b). which has been determined based on valuation that reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporiing period. Valuations were performed by an accredited independent
valuer. The valuations were mainly based on comparison method that makes reference to
comparable properties which have been sold or are being offered for sale.

The IPUC as at 31 December 2012 is stated at cost less impairment as the fair value is not

reliably determinable.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

5. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

RM'000
31.12.2012
Cost
At 1 January 2012/31 December 2012 24,018
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2012 3,374
Amortisation for the year 303
At 31 December 2012 3677
Net book value 20,341
31.12.2011
Cost
At 1 July 2011/31 December 2011 24,018
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 July 2011 3222
Amortisation for the year 162
At 31 December 2011 3,374
Net book value 20,644
1.7.2011
Net book value 20,796

67



9657 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software
Software Development Total
RM'000 RM"'000 RM'000
31.12.2012
Cost
At 1 Japuary 2012 67,034 6,464 73,498
Additions 7,166 - 7,166
Wite off (44,301) - (44,301
Reclassified from propery, plant
and equipment (Note 3) 8,817 (5,436) 3,381
Translation differences 22 - 22
At 31 December 2042 36,738 1,028 39,766
Accumulated Amortisation
At 1 January 2012 45,036 - 45,036
Amortisation for the year 9,544 - 8,544
Write off (44,301} - (44,301}
Reclassified from property, plant
and equipment (Note 3) 3,642 - 3,642
Translation differences 18 - 18
At 31 December 2012 13,939 - 13,939
Net Book Value 24,799 1,028 258,827
31.12.2011
Cost
At 1 July 2011 43,161 24,339 67,500
Additions 3,595 2,407 6,002
Reclassification 20,282 (20,282) -
Translation differences (4) - {4)
At 31 December 2011 67,034 6,464 73,498
Accumulated Amortisation :
At 1 July 2011 42 998 - 42,998
Amortisation for the period 1,978 - 1,976
Reclassification 65 - 65
Translation differences (3) - {3)
At 31 December 2011 45036 - 45,036
Net Book Value 21,998 6,464 28,462
1.7.2011
Net Book Value 163 24,339 24,502
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

7.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011

Unquoted shares, at cost RM1 RMA1 RM1

No. of shares 1 1 1
Principal Effective interest (%)

Name of company activity 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011

Double Care Sdn Bhd ("DCSB") Dormant 100.00 100.00 100.00

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

On 26 Gclober 2009, the Company passed a Special Resolution to commencs winding up of
DCSB. A tax clearance letter has recently been obtained from Inland Revenue Board of
Malaysia on 23 April 2012. As soon as the affairs of DCSB are totally wound-up, DCSB
would call for a final meeting to complete the members’ voluntary winding-up process.

69



9557 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

8.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

31122012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Unquoted shares, at cost 152 152 152
_ Principal Eiffective interest {%)
Name of company activity 31.12.2012  31.12.2011 1.7.2011
Asian Forum Inc. Offshore captive 33.33 33.33 33,33
(Incorporated in Federal insurance
Territory of Labuan, Maiaysia)

The summarised financial information of the associate is as fallows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011

RM'000 RM'000 RM"000

Assets and liabilities
Current assets 17,787 18,355 17.471
Total assets 17,787 18,355 17,471
Current liabilities 12,298 12,978 11,868
Non-current liabilities 19 63 150
Total liabilities 12,317 13,038 12,018
Share of net assets @ 33.33% _ 1,823 1,772 1,818
Resulis
Revenue 54 112 422
Prafit/(loss) after tax 356 (409) 251
Share of profit/{loss) @ 33.33% 119 (138) 84

The financial year end of the associate is 31 December. For the purpose of the disclosures
above, the management financial statements for the 9-months period ended 30 September
2012 and 30 September 2011, and for the 3-months period ended 31 March 2012 and 31
March 2011, were used. There are no significant differences expected had the results or
financial position as at 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 and 31 March 2011 have

been applied.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

9.

INVESTMENTS
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Malaysian government papers 574,351 611,682 602,846
Singapore government securities 31,779 62,756 57,000
Debt securities 8,455,647 7,792,532 7,398,197
Equity securities 2,028,617 1,605,186 1,718,509
Irredeemable Loan Stock 22,574 - -
Unit and property trust funds 174,348 79,989 56,410
Structured products (Note 10) 523,025 342,704 330,671
Negctiable certificates of deposit 528,549 526,588 716,159
Foreign notes - 221,790 209,132
Deposits with financial institutions 926,435 1,278,365 1,126,369
13,265,325 12,521,592 12,216,293

The Company's financial investments are summarised by categories as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Available-for-sale ("AFS'") 3,262,927 2,499,681 2,478,213
Fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL")
- designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL 7,974,527 7,686,525 7,497,587
- held for trading ("HFT") 1,101,436 1,057,021 1,114,124
Loans and receivables ("LAR") 926,435 1,278,365 1,126,369
13,265,325 12,521,692 12,216,293
The carrying value of investments maturing after 12 months are as follows:
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
AFS 1,417,929 1,128,179 1,004,235
FVTPL
- designated upon initial recognition 7,405,146 7,375,967 7,164,371
-HFT 668,695 378,599 313,320
- LAR - - 1,000
9,491,77C 8,882,745 8,482,926
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

9. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

(a) Available-for-Sale ("AFS")
Fair value
Malaysian government papers
Singapore government securities
Debt securities:
Quoted outside Malaysia
Unquoted in Malaysia
Unguoted outside Malaysia
Equity securities:
Quoted in Malaysia
Quoted outside Malaysia
Unquoeted in Malaysia
Unquoted cutside Malaysia
Unit and property trust funds:
Quoted in Malaysia
Quoted outside Malaysia
Unquoted in Malaysia
Unquoted outside Malaysia
lrredeemable Loan Stock in Malaysia
Structured products (Note 10)
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Total AFS financial assets

(b} Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

() Designated upon initial recognition
Fair value
Malaysian government papers
Debt securities:
Unquoted in Malaysia
Structured products {(Note 10)
Negotiable certificates of deposit

72

31.12.2012  31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM000 RM' 000
28,391 77,182 84,740
31,779 62,756 57,000
58,000 40,140 42,243
1,247,987 800,757 789,266
27,913 20,004 22,827
1,504,633 1,137,563 1,246,690
9,390 72 71
102,252 105,842 105,842

- 4,414 5,078

28,969 24,800 8,068
72,685 25,690 11,114
54,302 4,302 4,302

- 3,561 10,902

22’574 - -
38,395 56,507 54,308
35,657 36,091 35,764
3,262,927 2,499,681 2,478,213
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RN'000 RNM'000
470,719 921,454 512,033
6,808,071 6,403,809 6,144,931
218,124 286,198 276,363
477,613 475,064 564,260
7,974,527 7,686,525 7,497,687
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

9. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D})

(b) Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (Cont'd)

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'00Q RM0Q0 RM'000
(if)y HFT
Fair value
Malaysian government papers 75,240 13,045 6,072
Debt securities:
Unquoted in Malaysia 313,677 427,822 398,931
Equity securities
Quoted in Malaysia 412,342 357,295 361,829
Unit and property trust funds:
Quoted in Malaysia 278 1,134 -
Quoted outside Malaysia 18,114 20,502 22,025
Negotiable certificates of deposit 15,280 15,433 116,135
Structured products (Note 10) 266,505 - -
Fareign notes - 221,790 209,132
1,101,436 1,057,021 1,114,124
Total FVTPL financial assets 9,075,963 8,743,546 8,611,711
(c) Loans and receivables ("LAR")
31.12,2012  31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RNM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Fair valug
rixed and call deposits with:
Licensed banks 211,288 991,892 841,248
Other financial instituitions 15,147 286,473 285,121
Total LAR financial assets 926,435 1,278,365 1,126,369
13,265,325 12,521,592 12,216,283

The carrying amount disclosed for LAR above approximaies fair value as at reporting
date due {o the short term maturity of the financial assets.

Fair Value of Financial Investments

An analysis of the different fair value measurement bases used in the determination of the
fair values of Investments are further disclosed in Note 39(a) of the financial statements.

Included in the AFS financial assets are assets pledged to obtain a banking facility from

Malayan Banking Berhad ("MBB") which amounted fo RM45,760,000 (31.12.2011:
RM45,760,000; 1.7.2011: RM45,760,000).
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysla)

11. FINANCING RECEIVABLES

12.

Policy/autormnatic premium loans
Corporate loans
Staff loans:
Secured
Unsecured
Others
Interest in suspense
Allowangce for impairment losses

Receivable after 12 months

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'C0O0
228,882 228,346 229,206

- 11,550 43,733

33,333 22,948 25,188
70 126 183
13,450 21,382 21,457
(7,080) 6,371} (6,092)
(2,376) (1,689) {1,730)
266,379 276,002 311,916
65,493 84,579 88,749

The above balances are interest bearing. The carrying amount approximates fair value as

the effect of discounting is not material.

The weighted average effective interest rates during the financial year were as follows:

Policy/fautomatic premium loans
Corporate loans
Staff loans

REINSURANCE ASSETS

Reinsurers' share of:
- Life insurance contract lizbilities
- General insurance contract liabilities

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011

8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

- 7.68% 573%

3.21% 3.10% $U/Me
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'C00 RM'000 RM'000
33,813 36,058 36,966
1,607,780 1,400,463 1,281,405
1,691,599 1,437,421 1,378,371

75



9557 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

13. INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

14,

Due premiums including agents/brokers and
co-insurers balances
Due from reinsurers and cedants

Allowance for impairment losses

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Amount due from stockbrokers

Sundry receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Allowance for impairment losses

Income due and accrued
Allowance for impairment losses

Amount due from related companies
- Ultimate holding company
- Other related companies

TOTAL

31122012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
168,210 229,959 280,889
245,304 98,560 65,601
414,514 328,510 346,490
(28,440) (50,187) (56,556)
386,074 278,332 289,934

31.12.2012  31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'ODO RW'000

70,060 11,358 9,674
42,053 38,549 33,627
(372) (1,175) (1,162)
41,681 37,374 37,465
131,856 122,598 116,210
(401) (3,359) (128)
131,455 719,230 716,082
- - 2,796

5,101 2,323 3683
5,101 2,323 6479
248,297 770,294 764,700

The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these balances. Amount due from related companies is trade and non-trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

16. SHARE CAPITAL

17.

> <

[P Number of shares

31.12.2012 31.12.2011  1.7.2011 31.12.2012
‘000 ‘000 '000 RM'000

Authorised:

Qrdinary shares
of RM1.00 each

At beginning and
end of year/
period 500,000 500,000

500,000 500,000

F X e 1] 1] A m— >
31122011 1.7.2011
RM'006 RM00C

500,000 500,000

Issued and Paid-up:

Ordinary shares
of RM1.00 each

At beginning and
end of year/
period 152,151 152,151

152,151 152,151

152,161 152,151

RESERVES

The reserves shown in the Statement of Equity are as follows:

(il The AFS reserve of the Company arose from the changes in the fair value of the

investment assets of the shareholder's and non-Par funds.

(i) The currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
fransiation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies

are different from that of the Company's presentation currency.

(it) The revaluation reserve of the Company arose from the fair value movement on

investment properiies.

(iv) Non-distributable retained earnings represent the unallocated surplus from the non-Par
fund. In accordance Section 43(2) of the Insurance Act, 1996, the unallocated surplus is
only availabe for distribution to the shareholder upon approvalrecommendation by the

Appointed Actuary.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorparated in Malaysia)

19. DEFERRED TAXATION

At 1 January 2012/1 July 2011
Recognised in:
Income statement (Note 32)
Other comprehensive income (Note 32)
Insurance contract liabilities (Note 18)
Exchange differences
At 31 December

31.12.2012  31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
(414,642) (422,428)
(6,598) (9,115)
(7,822) 11,427
(453) 5,472

16 2
[429,459) CAET))

Deferred tax assets and lizbilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The net deferred tax shown in the balance sheet have been

determined after appropriate offsetting.

31.12.2012
RM'000

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:

31.12.2011
RM"000

14,661
(429,303)

Deferred tax assets 13,422
Deferred tax liabilities (442,921)
(429,499)

1.7.2011
RM'000

17,457
(439,885)

414,642y~ (A22.428)
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9557 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

20. INSURANCE PAYABLES

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011

RM'000 RWM'000 RM'000

Due to agents and intermediaries 42,009 44,629 42,565
Due to reinsurers and cedants 363,168 287,034 279,766
405,177 331,663 322,331

The camying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these balances.

21. OTHER PAYABLES

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'00C RM'000 RN'000
Premium deposits 71,038 45,115 51,795
Dividend payable to policyholders 66,714 64,903 60,414
Amount due to related companies*
- Ultimate holding company 358 3,554 -
- Holding company 1,620 3,628 2,435
- Other related companias - 1 253
- Subsidiary 1,654 1,655 1,655
Amount due to stockbrokers 7.530 22,653 73,103
Sundry payables and accrued liabilities 143,441 119,683 143,117
292 385 261,192 332,772

*  Amount due to related companies is trade and non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest
free and is repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair values at the reporting date. All
amounts are payable within one year.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

22. OPERATING REVENUE

Gross premiums (Nofe 23}
Investment income (Note 25)

23. NET EARNED PREMIUMS

(a)

{b)

Gross Earned Premiums

Life insurance confracts
General insurance contracts
Gross Premiums (Note 22)
Change in premium liabilities
Gross Eamed Premiums

Earned Premiums ceded to Reinsurers

Life insurance contracts

General insurance contracts
Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Change in premium liabilities

Earned premiums ceded to reinsurers

Net Earned Premiums

24, FEE AND COMMISSION INCONE

Reinsurance commission income

87

1.1,2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
2,770,388 1,243,361
588,088 204,347
3,358,476 1,537,708
1.1.2042 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
1,374,656 674,737
1,395,732 568,624
2,770,388 1,243,361
59,875 65,790
3,830,263 1,308,151
(20,585) (12,569)
(768,354) (288,494)
(788,939) (299,063)
(63,675) (60,825)
(852,614) (359,888)
1,977,649 949,263
1.4.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RNM'000
59,727 27,703
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

25, INVESTMENT INCOME

1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 fo
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
Financial assets at FVTPL
(i) Designated upon initial recognition
Interest income 373,760 173,818
(ii} HFT
Interest income 20,456 11,937
Dividend income
- Quoted in Malaysia 11,794 5,994
- Quoted outside Malaysia 20 -
AFS Financial assets
inferest income 57,795 25,176
Dividend income
- Quoted in Malaysia 42,297 19,184
- Quoted outside Malaysia 486 1
- Unguoted in Malaysia 2,485 2,801
- Unit and property trusts 1,167 158
LAR
Interest income 26,930 16,343
Interest income from financing receivables
and other loans 19,253 10,326
Rental income 28,215 16,127
Accretion of discounts 8,364 14,982
Investment related expenses (4,944) (2,600)
588,088 294 347
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

26. REALISED GAINS

89 .

11.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12,2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
Realised gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 102 -
Realised gain on disposal of investment properties 140 6%
AFS financial assets
Realised gains:
- Malaysian government papers 701 -
~ Equity securities 149,568 74,634
- Debts securities 13,909 1,541
~ Irredemable convertible loan stocks 47 -
- Other investments 635 g78
164,858 77,153
Financial assets at FVTPL
() Designated upon initial recognition
' Realised gains:
- Malaysian government papers 641 468
- Debts securities 89,438 11,881
90,079 11,927
(iiy HFT
Realised {losses)/gains:
- Malaysian government papers (93) 31
- Equity securities 18,841 2,640
- Debts securities 5,475 1,650
- Negotiable certificate of deposits - 7,448
- Other investments 1,298 197
- Derivative asset {19,542) (387)
5,879 11,579
TOTAL REALISED GAINS 261,158 100,728
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

27. FAIR VALUE (LOSSES)/GAINS

28,

FVTPL - held for trading purpcses

FVTPL- designated upon initial recognition

Total fair value gains on financial assets
atFVTPL

Impairment losses on investments

Fair value (losses)/gains from financial assets

Invesiment properties
TOTAL FAIR VALUE (LOSSES)GAINS

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE, NET

Other income
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange
Processing incomea

Reversal of impairment losses on receivables
Sundry income

Other expenses

Bad debts written off
Realised loss on foreign exchange
Sundry expenditure

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING REVENUE, NET

90

1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
34.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
(2,193) (32,444)
(33,211) 85,972
(35,404) 53,528
(22,039) (15,155)
(57,443) 38,373
48,915 40
(8.525) 38,413
1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
44,001 16,052
1,479 714
24,940 2,904
3,176 1,477
73,506 21,147
(6,854) (2,340)
(2,730) (1,226)
(229) (415)
(9,313) (3.981)
63,783 17,166
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ETiQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

29, NET BENEFITS AND CLAIMS

(a) Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

Insurance contracts:
General
Life

(b} Claims Ceded to Reinsurers
Insurance contracts:

General
Life

(c) Gross Change in Contract Liabilities

Insurance contracts;
General
Life

(d} Change in Contract Liabilities Ceded

to Reinsurers
Insurance contracis:

General
Life

NET BENEFITS AND CLAIMS

91

1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
535,504 212,456
1,286,373 489,109
1,821,877 701,565
(237,753) (68,389)
(11,036) (7,488)
(248,789) (76,877)
382,371 205,458
306,936 291,362
689,307 496,820
(320,996) (179,883)
3,145 8
(317,851) (179,875)
1,944,544 942,633
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

30. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

1.1.2012 fo 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RAT'000
Employee benefits expense (a) 170,874 68,893
Directors’ remuneration (b) 1,488 652
Auditors’ remuneration:
- statutory audits 805 765
- gverprovigion in prior year (1) (33)
- ather services 67 32
Amportisation of intangible assets 9,544 1,976
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 303 152
Bank charges 9,571 3,293
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,300 7,955
Fund management fees 1,556 8,698
Other management fees 3,006 546
Professional fees 3,106 7,707
Rental of offices/premises 3,740 1,935
Electronic data processing expenses 10,024 263
Qutsourcing services 14,617 8,879
Postage & stamp duties 5,563 2,375
Printing & stationery 3,089 1,553
Promotional and marketing cost 14,608 8,092
Training expenses 4,360 1,568
Utilities, assessment and mainfenance 8,718 1,097
Entertainment 1,976 1,127
Travelling expenses 4,295 2,234
Office facilties expenses 1,638 1,025
Legal fees (108) 965
Cther expenses 19,792 14,562
TOTAL MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 301,021 146,311
(a) Employee benefils expense:
Wages and salaries 121,339 46,483
EPF, CPF and TAP 18,308 7445
S0CS0 632 292
Share-based compensation 5,066 6,536
Cther benefits 24,539 8,137
170,874 68,893

Included in employee benefits expense is remuneration receivable by the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of RM363,673 (1.7.2011 to 31.12.2011:RM1,285,255) as

disclosed in Note 30(c).
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

30. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTD)

(b} Directors' remuneration:

(c)

Exacutive:
Salary, bonus and allowance
EPF
Fees
Share-based compensation
Other emoluments

Non executive:
Fees
Allowance

1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
662 346

10 8

80 21

- 33

158 62

533 156

68 26

1,488 652

The number of directors whose total remuneration received from the Company during
the year/period falls within the following bands is analysed below:

Executive director
Above RM50,000

Non-executive directors
Below RM50,000
Above RM50,000 to RM100,000

Numbers of Directors

31.12.2012

3
6

31.12.2011

The details of remuneration receivable by CEQ during the year/period are as follows.

Salary

Bonus

EPF

Share-based compensation
Other emoluments
Retirement gratuity
Benefits in kind

83

1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
276 276

- 423

48 115

- 227

26 23

- 207

14 14

364 1,285
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

31. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSES

1.1.2012to
31.12.2012
RM'000
Costs incurred for the acquisition of insurance
contracts expensed in the current financial
year/period 209,153

1.7.2011 to
31.12.201
RM'000

104,831

32. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Major compenents of income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2012 and &

menths ended 31 December 2011 are;

1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
(Restated)
Income Statement:
Income tax:
Current financial year/period provision
- Malaysia 142,945 70,750
- Foreign {22) 176
Deferred taxation:
Relating to origination and reversal
of temporary differences (Note 19) 6,598 9,115
{Qver)funder provision of taxation
in prior financial years (9,465) 1,341
Income tax expense recognised in
income statement 140,056 81,382
Statement of comprehensive income:
Deferrad income tax related {o other
comprehensive income:
- Fair value changes on AFS
investments 7,822 {11,427}
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

32. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTD)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the
applicable corporate tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 6 months ended 31

December 2011 are as follows:

1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RNM'000
Income Statement:
Profit hefore taxation 487,159 233,845
Taxation at Malaysian statutory
tax rate of 25% (30.6.2011: 25%) 121,790 58,462
Effect of Section 110B tax credit set off {13,674) (7,167)
Business ouiside Malaysia
taxed at 5% (2,018} 915}
Income not subject to tax (9,713) (2,399)
Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 53,137 32,080
{Over)!under provision of taxation
in prior financial years {2,465) 1,341
Tax expense for the financial year/period 140,058 81,382

The domestic income tax for shareholder's fund and general fund are caleulated based on
the corporate tax rate of 25% (1.7.2011 to 31.12.2011: 25%) of the estimated assessable

profit for the financial year.

The income tax for the life fund is calculated based on the statutory rate of 8% (1.7.2011 to
31.12.2011: 8%) of the estimated assessable investment income net of allowable deductions
faor the financial year,

In view of this, the Company has computed the deferred tax for shareholder's fund and
general fund, and life fund based on the corporate tax rate of 25% and 8% respectively.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

32. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

Prior to the year of assessment 2008, Malaysians companies adopt the full imputation
system. In accordance with the Finance Act 2007 which was gazeited on 28 December
2007, companies shall not be entitled to deduct tax on dividend paid, credited or distributed
to its shareholders, and such dividend will be exempted from tax in the hands of the
shareholders ("single tier system"). However, there is a fransitional pericd of six years,
expiring on 31 December 2013, to allow companies to pay franked dividends fo their
shareholders under limited circumstances. Companies also have an irrevocable option to
disregard their accumulated tax credit under Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1967
("Section 108 balance") and opt te pay dividends under the single tier system. The change in
the tax legislation also provides for the Section 108 balance to be locked-in as at 31
December 2007 in accordance Section 38 of the Finance Act, 2007,

Due to the changes in the single tier system, any distribution of dividend-in-species in
respect of the ordinary shareholdings would be regarded as single tier dividend. The Section
108 accounts and tax exempt account will not be affected. There will be parallel existence of
single tier system and imputation systern until 31 December 2013.

The Company did not elect for the irevocable option to disregard the Section 108 balance.
During the transitional period, the Company may utilise the credits in the Section 108
balance as at 31 December 2007 to distribute cash dividend payments to ordinary
shareholder as defined under the Finance Act, 2007.

Previously, investment income and gains from disposal of investments from the Life Fund
would be taxed twice, once at a tax rate of 8% in the Life Fund and again at a tax rate of
25% when the surplus from the Life Fund is transferred to the Shareholder's Fund. n the
Budget 2008 which was enacted via a Gazette Order on 21 April 2008, effective from year of
assessment 2008 onwards insurers are permitted a set-off ("Section 110B credits") from the
total amount of tax imposed on the Shareholder's Fund to overcome the incidence of double
taxation.

Section 1108 credits are governed by a specific Inland Revenue Board ("IRB") guideline
issued on 5 November 2008 which details the computation of the said credits available to the
Shareholdre's Fund of an insurer. Section 110B credits are applied before dividend tax
credits when compufing net tax payable to the IRB.
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33.

34.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year aftributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the financial year/period.

1.1.2012to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

sen sen
Profit attributable to ordinary edquity holders 347,103 152,463
Basic earnings per share (sen) 228.13 100.21

Diluted earnings per share are not presented as there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares as at the date of the statement of financial position.

There have been no other transactions inveolving ordinary shares between the reporting date
and date of completion of these financial statements.
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a) Company as lessee
As at the date of the statement of financial position, the Company leases its office
premises under lease agreements that are not cancellable within a year. The leases

contain renewable options.

Future minimum lease payments for the leases with initial or remaining terms of one
year or more are as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011

RM'000 RM'000 KRM'000

Within 1 year 3,390 3,849 5171
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,986 14,130 19,035
14,376 17,879 24,206
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34 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONT'D)

(b) Company as lessor

The Company has enitered into operating lease agreements on its portfolio of
investment properties. The leases have remaining lease terms of between 1 and 3
years. All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an
annual basis based on prevailing market condifions, The leases also include a clause
that allows for early termination but requires the tenant to provide a replacement tenant

or pay for the remaining unexpired lease period.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases contracted for as at the date of statement of financial position but not

recognised as receivables, are as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011

RM'000 RM'000 RM'Q00

Not [ater than 1 year 29,983 31,992 30,197
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 57,638 87,257 59,631
87,622 89,249 89,828

Rental income on investment properties recognised in income statement during the

financial year/period is disclosed in Note 25.

35. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RW000
Approved and contracted for:

Property, plant and equipment 4,175 1,819 1,882
Intangible assets 9,359 14,016 17,622
13,534 15,835 19,504

Approved and not contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment 1,350 - 200

98



9557 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i

Significant transactions of the Company with related parties during the financial

year/period were as follows:

Incomef/(expenses);

Transactions with the ultimate holding company:

Gross insurance premium income
Dividend income

Commissions and fees expenses
Interest income

Rental income

Other expenses

Transactions within holding company:
Rental income
Other management fees
Shared service cost chargeback
Interim dividend

Transactions with other related
companies within the MBB group:
Gross insurance premium income
Rental income
Invesiment management fees
Other management fees
Shared service cost chargeback
Other expenses

Transactions with companies with

significant influence over the MBB Group:

Gross insurance prermium income

99

11.2012t0  1.7.2011to
31.12.2012  31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
5,868 2,157
4,496 B79
(78,250) (40,099)
32,240 17,020

491 239
(2,712) (1,267)

109 59
(5.804) (3,209)

419 289
(350,329)  (180,299)

2 1

9,909 5,738
(1,558) (8,698)
(54,781) (22,822)
70,953 32,500
(8,007) (1,410)
21,482 11,450
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT'D)

(i) Included in the statement of financial position of the Company are amounts due
from/(to) related companies represented by the following:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Ultimate holding company:
Fixed deposits and' call deposits 525,765 550,742 451,170
Structured deposits 54,075 49,085 365,000
NCD & NICD 170,317 165,040 260,389
Corporate bonds 419,712 396,029 367,673
Bank balance 149,361 59,655 179,489
Income due and accrued 7,747 5,938 9,272
Qutstanding premiums 9,355 9,861 11,691
Amount due (to)/from ultimate holding
company (358) (3,554) 2,796
Sundry payables and accrued liabilities (2,417) (722) (201)
Holding company.
Amount due to holding company (1,620) (3,628) (2,435)
Dividend payable (350,329) - -
Other related companies over the MEB Group: -
Outstanding premiums 171 (182) 411
Income and profits due and accrued 260 277 537
Amount due frorn other related companies 5,101 2,323 3,683
Amount due to other related companies - {1) (263)
Sundry payables and accrued liabilities - (4,528) (4,785)
Companies with significant influence over the
MBB Group:
QOutstanding premiums 1,173 81 2,342
Subsidiary:
Amount due to subsidiary (1,654) (1,655) (1,655)
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT'D)
(iiy Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel are those persons having authotity and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly.
The key management personnel of the Company are the Executive Direciors and Chief
Executive Officer.

The remuneration of the Execufive Director and Chief Executive Officer were as

follows:
1.1.2012t0 1.7.2011 to

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000

Short-term employee benefits

- Salaries, allowances and bonuses 938 1,045
- EPF 58 123
- Feas &0 21
- Share-based compensation - 260
- Other staff benefits 195 89
Post employment benefits
- Retirement gratuity - 207
1,251 1,755

37. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Risk Management Framework defines the governance structure to support the Risk
Management process and to ensure strong risk management. It defines the risk related
roles and responsibilities of the different Boards, Committees and Departments for the legal
entities within Maybank Ageas Holdings Berhad {"MAHB") (formerly known as Mayban
Ageas Holdings Berhad), being Etiga Insurance Berhad ("EIB") and Etiga Takaful Berhad
("ETB"), collectively known as the Maybank Ageas Group (“the Group”). A strong risk
governance structure enhances the capabilities to align risk appetite and strategy, link risk
with growth and return, make timely risk response decisions, minimise operational surprises
and losses, seize opportunities and rationalise capital.
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D)

The Framework also ensures that risks are properly and adequately identified, evaluated,
monitored and reported, so as to safeguard and protect the assets of the Company and enable
the Company to fulfill our obligations to its customers, sharehclder, stakeholders and meeting
the expectations of the regulators.

The Risk Management function was strengthened with the appointment of the Chief Risk
Officer ("CRQO") to the Senior Management Commiitee. The CRO will ensures an independent
control function and makes risk management more strategic within the Group.

The Group’s Risk Appetite principles are subject to Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM") guidelines,
Internationa Standards Guideline on Risk Management issued by recognised organisational.

This Framework is set up to ensure that all significant risks are identified, assessed, monitored
and managed in accordance with the interests of shareholders and is intended to guide all
business conduct within the Group. It identifies three levels:

- Clear risk objectives and business sirategy:

- Comprehensive Risk Management cycle; and

- Strong Risk Culture.

Clear Risk Objectives and Business Strategy

The Group's business is risk taking of nature and is intrinsic to how it creates value for ifs
customers and shareholders. To ensure the Group delivers sustainable growth in shareholder
valus, the execution of business strategy is at all times kept within its risk tolerance to control
the rigk of insolvency. A clear business strategy is required together with explicit statements of
which risks or events are tolerable or to be avoided at all fimes. The Risk Appetite is controlled
by having consistent limits and policies in place for all relevant risks.

If risks are taken, they need to stay within the risk appetite as has been set by the Board. If
risks and the potential losses associated with the risk are not tolerable, action must be taken.
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D)
Comprehensive Risk Management Cycle

All key risks are identified and appropriately managed. An overview of major risk categories
including Financial, Insurance, Qperational risks and Strategic or industry-specific risk types
describe the entire set of potential risks that should be used to ensure completeness. Key risks
and key risk indicators are identified to frack the most important developments and actions.
Reporting is prepared with necessary limits including risk appetite or other relevant elements to
suppoit immediate monitoring.

Strong Risk Culture

The Policy Framework describes the risk management process and the control procedures
ncessary to ensure risk management is effectively carried out. Monitoring is accomplished
through ongoing management activities, separate svaluations, or both. Clear responsibilities
and accountabilities are the cornerstone for good risk.management and good governance in
general.

Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Approach

The Capital Management Guideline sets a standard policy regarding the levels of capital to be
maintained within the Group. The Capital Management Guideiine adopts the regulatory capital
requirements. For the Company, it is aligned with Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) defined in the
RBC Framework.

The Capital Management Guideline defines the level of internal capital target which is reviewed
on an annual basis. This is to ensure that the target capital leve! adequately reflects the risk
profile of the portfolio as well as the risk tolerance, The guideline is supported by stress testing
exercises conducted at least twice a year. The stress testing exercise is governed by the
requirements established in the stress festing Guideline on Stress Testing for Insurers
(BNM/RH/GL. 003-23) issued by BNM.

Currently, the minimum CAR is set by BNM at 130%.
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D)

Asset-Liability Managemant {"ALM")

The Asset-Liability Management Committee ("ALCO") is responsible to coordinate ongoing
controls over the financialfinvestment risk position of each investment portfolio and the liability
position of the Group.

The ALCO is authorised to propose policies to the Risk Management Committee ("RMC") and
the Investment Committee ("IC™ and to propose the implementation program of investment
activities. The ALCO is also responsible for carrying out Asset Liability Management ("ALM")
studies, amongst other things.

Risk Governance Structure and Risk Organisation

The governance siructure outlines the organisational structure, the hierarchy and the scope of
responsibilities of all the Governance bodies involved in the risk management function.

The Risk Management function is buiit around a number of Boards and Committees that have
been set-up, including the Board of Directors (“Board™), the Risk Management Committee
("RMC") and the Risk Management Meeting ("RMM").

Governance is emphasised via various level of committees (Board, Management and Working
levels), Each of the Committees have its own terms of reference, roles and responsiblilities,
specific duties and level of authority.

Board Lavel
I MAHH Board I Investment ManR[:::’uent Audit Shariah
ETB Board |[EIB Board] | Committee ger Committee | | Committee
Committee
Management Level
Senior Business Product Asset and Risk Audit
Management{| Growth Development}| Liability Management Review
Committee Meeting Committee || Committee Meeting Meeting
Operating units Support units
First line of Second fine of Third iine of
gefance defence defence
Risk Taking units Risk Management Compliance Ir:i;r}fl
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37. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D)

Risk Governance Structure and Risk Organisation (Cont'd)

Risk management at the Group is organised centrally and is embedded in the business units.
The Group's risk management approach is premised on three lines of defence — Risk Taking
Units, Risk Control Units and Internal Audit.

)

()

(iii}

Risk Taking Unit (First Line of Defence}

Risk Taking Units are responsible for the day-tc-day management of risks inherent in their
business activities. They are the first placed and operationally responsible to ensure that
the Group does not suffer from unforeseen circumsiances.

The business is responsible for managing the full risk taxonomy that relates its execution
of business strategy and ranges fram the CEO, Line Management and Business
Managers to employees in the business lines.

Risk Control Unit (Second Line of Defence)

Risk Control units, through Risk Management and Compliance Department, are
responsible for setting the risk management framework, adherence fo it and developing
tools and methodologies for the identification, measurement, monitoring and control.

In addition, the Risk Management Depariment has the responsibility to communicate and
embed risk strategy, risk awareness and risk management within the entire organisation.
The Compliance function has an overall assurance rale in which it ensures that policies
abide to any relevant external guidelines and requirements.

Internal Audit {Third Line of Defence)

Internal Audit checks and provides independent assurance of the effectiveness of the risk
management approach, proper design and implementation of the risk management
framework and observance of guidelines, policies and processes.
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9557 T

ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(0

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Receivables/Payahles

The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity -
of these financial instruments.

Financing Receivables

Financing receivables are granted at interest rates which are comparable with the
rates offered on similar instruments in the market and to counter parties with similar
credit profile. Accordingly, the canying amount of the financing receivables
approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not material.

Insurance Receivables and Payables

The carrying amounts are measured at amortised cost in accordance with the
accounting policies as disclosed in Note 2.2(r) and 2.2{y} . The carrying amounts
approximate fair values due to the short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments as at 31 December 2011 have been acccunted for in
accordance with the accounting policies as disclosed in Note 2.2(f) and 2.2(g). The
carrying amounts and fair values of the investments are disclosed in Notes 9, 10 and
14 to the financial statementis.

Description of Overall Fair Value Framework

The Company has an established framework and policies which provides guidance
concerning the practical considerations, principles and analytical approaches for the
establishment of prudent valuations of financial instruments.

The valuations of financial instruments are performed either based on gquoted prices
in active markets at which an arm’s length transaction would be likely to occur or
using valuation techniques. Fair values of financial instruments can be assessed
using observable inputs or unobservable inputs where one or more significant inputs
are unobservable. Managerment judgment is exercised in the selection and application
of appropriate parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques where some or all
of the parameter inputs are not observable in deriving fair value.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIAEILITIES (CONT'D)

{iv) Investments (Cont'd)
Description of Overall Fair Value Framework {Cont'd}

Valuation adjustment is an integral part of valuation process. Valuation adjustment
reflects the uncertainty in valuations for products that are less standardised, [ess
frequently traded and more complex in nature. In making valuation adjustments, the
Company follows methodologies that consider factors such as liquidity, bid-offer
spread, unobservable pricesfinputs in the market and uncertainties in the
assumptions/parameters.

In addition, the Company continvously enhances its design and validation
methodologies and processes used to produce valuations. The valuation models are
validated both internally and externally, with periodic reviews to ensure the model
remains suitable for its intended use.

Description of Overall Definition of the Fair Value Hierarchy

The levels of the fair value hierarchy as defined by the accounting standards are an
indication of the observability of prices or valuation input. It can be classified info
following hierarchy/level:

+ Level 1 : Active Market — quoted price

Refers to financial instruments which are regarded as quoted in an active market if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices which
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length
basis. Such financial instruments include actively traded government securities,
listed derivatives and cash products traded on an exchange.

« Level 2 : No Active Market — Valuation techniques using observable input
Refers to inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either direclly (i.e. prices) or indirestly (i.e. derived from
prices).
Examples of level 2 financial instruments include cerporate and government

« Level 3 : No Active Market — Valuation techniques using unobservable input

Refers to financial instruments where fair values are measured using unocbservable
market inputs. The valuation technique is consistent with fevel 2.

Examples of level 3 instruments include corporate bonds in illiquid markets and
structured and embedded derivatives.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

(a) Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy

31.12.2012

Valuation techniques used:
Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3
Quoted Significant
market Observable unobservable
prices inputs inputs Total
RM'000 RM'0Q0 RM'C00 RM'000
Assels
AFS financial investments
Equity sesurities 1,614,023 - - 1,514,023
MGSIGII MGGBA - 60,170 - 60,170
Other debt securities,
structured products and
NCDs - 1,369,557 38,395 1,407,852
Irredeemable Loan Stock 22,574 - - 22,574
Unit and property frust
funds 101,654 - - 104,654
Financial investments at FVTPL
(i} Designated npon initial
recognifion
MGS/Gl IMGGB - 470,719 - 470,719
Other debt securities,
structured products
and NCDs - 7,285,684 218,124 7,503,808
(ii) Held- for- trading (HFT)
Equity securities 412,342 - - 412,342
MGS/GI MGGCBA - 75,240 - 75,240
Other debt securities,
structured producis
and NCDs “ 328,957 266,505 595,462
Unit and property trust
funds 18,392 - - 18,392
Derivative assets - - 688 688
Total assets 2,068,985 0,590,327 523,712 12,183,024

Liabilltles
Derivative Liabilities - - - -

Total {tabillties - - - _

A MGESIGII/MMGGS are govemment securities and government guaranteed debts,
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

(a)

Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy (Cont'd)

31.12.2011

Assets
AFS financial investments
Equity securifies
MGS/GII IMGGBA
Other debt securities,
structured producis and
NCDs
Lnit and property trust
funds
Financial investments at FVTPL
(i) Designated upon initial
recognition

MGSIGI MGGB?

Other debt securities,
structured products
and NCDs

(ii} Held- for- trading (HFT)

Equity sscurities

MGS/GIH IMGGRA

Other debt securities,
structured products
and NCDs

Unit and property trust
funds

Derivative assets
Total assets

Liabllitles
Derivative Liabilities
Total liabilities

Valuation technlques used:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Guoted Significant
market Observable unobservable
prices inputs inputs Total
RM'000 RM'QO0 RM'000 RM'000
1,137,635 - - 1,137,635
- 311,248 - 311,248
- 825682 56,507 882,189
50,490 - - 50,490
- 1,618,187 - 1,618,187
- 5,782,140 286,198 8,068,338
357,205 - - 357,295
- 38,542 - 38,542
- 539,548 - 639,648
21,636 - - 21,636
- - 33,355 33,356
1,867,056 9,215,347 376,060 11,158,463
- - {348) (348)
- - {348) {348)

A MGS/GIMMGGB are governmant securities and gevemment guaranteed debts.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BEERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {CONT'D})

{a) Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy (Cont'd)

1.7.2011
Valuation techniques used:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Slgnificant
market Observable unobservable
prices inputs inputs Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Assets
AFS financial investments
Equity securities 1,246,781 - - 1,246,781
MGS/Gil MGGBA - 30772 - 310,772
Other debt securities,
structured products and :
NCDs - 721,068 54, 308 775,376
Unit and property trust
funds 19,180 - - 19,180
Financial investments at FVTPL
{i)y Designated upon initial
recognition
MGS/GlH IMGGB - 1,564,197 - 1,564,197
Other debt securities,
structured products
and NCDs - 5,657,027 275,363 5,933,390
(i} Held- for- trading (HFT)
Equity securities 361,828 - - 361,829
MGS/GIE MGGBA - 7,581 - 7.581
Other debt securities,
struciured products
and NCDs - 722,689 - 722,689
Unit and property frust
funds 22,025 - - 22,025
Derivative assets - - 41,782 41,782
Total assets 1,649,785 8,983,334 372,453 11,005,582
Liabilities

Derivative Liabilities - - - -
Total liabilities - - - -

Unguoted equities securities and unguoted unit and property trust fund of RM102,252,080 and
RM54,302,280 (31.12.2011:RM110,256,016 and RM7,862,971; 1.7.2011:RM110,819,683 and
RM15,204,682) respectively as disclosed in Note ¢ are not included in the above analysis as
they are carried at cost.

A MGS/GIMMGGB are government securilies and government guaranteed debts.
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ETIQA INSURANCE BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {CONT'D)

(b) Reconciliation of level 3 fair value hierarchy

31.12.2012
Designated Derivative Derivative
AFS atFVTPL HFT assets liabillties Total
RM"000 RM"Q00 RM'G00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2012 56,507 286,198 - 33,355 (348) 375,712
Recognised in Income

Statement:

Realised gain/(loss) 829 - - {20,807) 348 {19,730)

Fair valug gain/(loss) - 11,926 - (23,313) - {11.387)
Recognised in Other

Comprehensive Income:

Fair value gain 1,058 - - - - 1,059
Translation differences - - - 8,671 - 8,671
Purchases - - 266,505 5,008 - 271,510
Sales {20,000) (80,000) - {123) - {100123)
At 31 December 2012 38,395 218,124 266,505 6838 - 523712
Total gains/(losses)
recognised in Income
Statement for financial
instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the
reporting period - 11,926 - (23,313) - (11,387)
Total gains recognised
in Other Comprehensiva
Income for financial
instruments measured
at fair value at the end
of the reporiing year 1,059 - - - - 1,059
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40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D}
{b) Reconciliation of level 3 fair value hierarchy

31.12.2011
Designated Derivative Derivative
AFS atFVTPL HFT assets liabilities Total
RN™000 RM'000 RM000 RM'O00 RM'O00  RM000

Al 1 July 2011 54,308 276,363 - 41,782

372,453

Recognised in Income

Statement:

Fair value gain/(loss) - 9,835 - {10,238) {348) (751)
Recognised in Other

Comprehensive Income:

Fair value gain 2,198 - - - - 2,189
Translation differences - 1,811 - 1,811

At 31 December 2011 56,5607 286,198 - 33,355 {348) 375,712

Total gains/{losses)

recognised in Income

Statement for financial

instruments measured at

fair value at the end of the

reporting period - 9,835 - (10,238) {348) (751)

Total gains recognised

in Other Comprehensive

Income for financial

instruments measured

at fair value at the end

of the reporting period 2,199 - - - - 2,199
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41.

42,

DIVIDENDS

1.1.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000

Recognised during the financial year/period:
Dividends on ordinary shares:
- Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012:
307 sen per share, net of tax at 25% (6 months ended
31 December 2011: 158 sen per share, net of tax
at 25%) 350,329 180,299

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the current
financial period.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 20 December 2012, the Company has obtained BNM's approval on the proposed
issuance of its RM500.0 milion Subordinated Bond. Subject to the requirements as
specified in the RBC Framework, the Subordinated Bond will qualify as a Tier 2 Capital.

The issuance of the Subordinated Bond is currently pending approval from the Securities
Commission Malaysia ("SC").

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

On 22 October 2012, the Company and fellow subsidary had terminated the services of
a service provider on the grounds that they had not complied with the services required of
them under the service level agreement between the service provider and the Company and
fellow subsidiary. On 28 November 2012, the service provider had, via its solicitors, issued a
letter of demand against the Company and fellow subsidiary for a particular sum, alledged to
be amounts awing fo the service provider for outstanding claims by Medical providers. in
respect of the amounts claimed by the service provider, management is of the opinion that
the claimed amounts were not substantiated and, thus, no payments were made. The
Company and fellow subsidiary’s solicitors had advised management that the Company and
fellow subsidiary had a reasonable defence against the claim until such time as sufficient
evidence is given by the service provider to support the claimed amounts. Accordingly,
management of the Company and fellow subsidiary are of the view that an accrual for the
claimed amounts is not necessary at this juncture, as the alleged amounts are not
substantiated by documentary evidence.
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44, REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

The capital structure of the Company as at 31 December 2012, as prescribed under the
RBC Framework is provided below:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RN'000 RM'000 RM'000
Eligible Tier 1 Capital
Share capital (paid up) 152,161 152,151 162,151
Reserves, including retained earings 3,718,355 3,683,005 3,696,119
3,870,508 3,835,156 3,848,270
Tier 2 Capital
Revaluation reserve 11,647 11,647 11,887
Available for sale reserve 264,666 216,809 318,293
Currency translation reserve 12,561 937 2632
288,874 229 393 332,812
Amount deducted from Capital (75,608) (74,135) (53,788)
Total Capital Available 4,083,775 3,900,414 4,127,294
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45. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated following the changes in accounting policies as stated
in Note 2.4,

Reconciliation of statement of financial position for comparative periods and previously reported
balances are as follows:-

(a) Statement of financial position as at 1 July 2011

FRS as at Increase/ MFRS as at

30.6.2011  {Decrease) 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM000 RM'000
Equity
AFS resarve 61,978 71,515 133,403
Retained samings 1,308,819 979,671 2,288,580
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 13,037,119 (1,393,952) 11,643,167
Deferred tax liabilities 79,662 342,768 422 428

{b) Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011

FRS as at Increase/ MFRS as at
31.12.2011 {Decrease) 31.12.2011

RM'000 RAN'000 RM'000
Eauity
AFS reserve 51,578 48,572 100,150
Retained earmnings 1,275,555 985,439 2,260,994
Liabilifies
Insurance contract liabilities 13,384,756 (1,373,500) 12,011,258
Beferred tax liabilities 75,153 339,488 414,642
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45. COMPARATIVE FIGURES (CONT'D)

Reconciliation of income statement and the statement of comprehensive income for the comparative
period and previously reported balances are as follows:

(8) Income statement for the six months period ended 31 December 2011

FRS as at Increase/ MFRS as at
31.12.2011  (Decrease)  31.12.2011

RM'000 RM000 RM'000
Total profit for the pericd _ 146,685 5,768 152,463
Comprise of the following
restatements:
Gross change in contract liabilities {504,511) 7.691 (498,520)
Taxation (79,459) (1,923) (81,382)

(b) Statement of comprehensive income for the six months perlod ended 31 December
2011

FRS as at Increasef MFRS as at
31.12.2011 (Decrease) 31.12.2011

RAM'000 RM'000 RM"000
Net gain on AFS financial assets:
- Gain on fair value changes 4,866 50,825 55,691
- Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal {19,045) {81,416) (100,461)
Tax effect relating to AFS financial assets 3,779 7.648 11,427

The change in accounting policy resulted in the following restatements:

{a) reclassification of unallscated surplus and AFS reserve {net of deferred tax) of non-Par fund
previously held within insurance coniract liabilities to retained profits end AFS reserve
retrospectively; and

(b) recognition of cotresponding deferred tax on unallocated surplus of non-Par fund and AFS
reseive.
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47. INVESTMENT-LINKED FUND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.7.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Assets:
Investments 1,381,237 1,299,453 1,181,765
Other receivables 9,017 13,740 0,485
Derivative asseis 269 33,355 41,782
Cash and bani balances 1,016 580 520
Total Assets 1,401,539 1,347,128 1,233,572
Deferred tax liabilities 8,776 2,432 3,852
Other payables 36,165 19,471 20,162
Current tax liabilities 4,832 3,127 1,762
Totat Liabilities 46,773 25,030 25,876
Net asset value of funds (Note 18) 1,354,766 1,322,098 1,207,696
INVESTMENT-LINKED FUND [INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 PECEMBER 2012 _
1.1.2012 to 1.7.2041 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'000
Investment income ) 36,936 18,295
Realised gains 6,304 11,5679
Fair value losses (2,960} (32,444)
Other operating revenue 34,104 8,180
Other revenue 74,384 5,610
Management expenses (49) (14)
Other expenses (49) (14}
Profit before tax 74,335 5,596
Taxation (5,948) (369)
Net profit'surplus affer tax 68,387 4,727
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